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Financial and Operating Highlights

MBEREERE

Results

Revenue
Profit attributable to
owners of the Company

Basic earnings per share (HK cents)
Interim and proposed final dividends

per share (HK cents)
Financial Position

Net current assets

Total interest-bearing bank loans

Key Financial Ratios

Gross profit ratio
Net profit ratio
Return on equity
Current ratio
Gearing ratio”

Operating Statistics

Throughput (metric tonnes)
Nanjing terminal
Ningbo terminal
Weifang terminal

Jetty utilisation rate®
Nanjing terminal
Ningbo terminal
Weifang terminal

Notes:
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(1) The calculation of the gearing ratio is based on the net bank loans
(total bank loans minus cash and cash equivalents) divided by
equity attributable to owners of the Company multiplied by 100%.

(2)  The utilisation rate is calculated by our record of the annual
actual throughput via jetties divided by the total annual designed
throughput capacity of jetties in relation to the operating period.
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2018
HK$’000
FET

262,491

66,930
5.48

4.0

224,101
175,500

54.8%
29.0%
6.4%
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1,542,000
339,000
5,730,000

31.9%
28.0%
80.2%
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2017
HK$'000
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241,464

50,276
4.12

3.0

105,821
228,583

52.0%
23.9%
4.6%
2.3
9.3%

1,502,000
367,000
1,358,000

29.3%
22.8%
73.0%

% Change
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to
present the annual results of Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited
(the “Group” or “Dragon Crown”) for the year ended 31 December
2018.

SOLID FOUNDATION OVERCOMES ECONOMIC
UNCERTAINTY

In 2018, China’s economy has reached its turning point after
contributing one-third of the global economic growth for the past 10
years. Under the impact of the Sino-US trade war which contributed
additional unfavorable factors to the economy, China recorded
GDP growth of 6.6% for 2018, a record low in the past 28 years.
In December 2018, the export and import trade amount recorded
a decrease of 4.4% and 7.6% respectively, the lowest record since
2016. Under adverse growth implications such as raising interest
rates, escalation of trade tensions between the U.S. and China,
and concerns about China’s economic growth, the year 2019 is
expected to be a challenging one. Fortunately, the solid foundation of
Dragon Crown established by our visionary management team over
the years has successfully minimized the impact of Sino-US trade
war to negligible level. In facing uncertain economic environment, the
Group continued to seize the opportunity to expand our business
through investment in Weifang Liquid Terminal development
projects, which will act as an important business base in the North-
east Asia.

Dragon Crown recorded revenue of HK$262.5 million (2017:
HK$241.5 million) and net profit of HK$76.2 million (2017: HK$57.8
million) for the financial year ended 31 December 2018. The increase
in net profit was mainly attributable to the increase in revenue from
new ethylene customers, the increase in revenue in respect of
methanol and acetic acid and gain on disposal of financial asset at
fair value through profit or loss.
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Chairman’s Statement
TEHRE

With a solid business foundation and a steady business development
strategy, Dragon Crown has been serving as a leading liquid
petrochemical storage and integrated terminal service provider,
attracting world-class chemical enterprises, such as Celanese
Corporation, and other large-scale oil refineries as our loyal business
partners. The revenue secured from such partners was in itself
sufficient to ensure satisfactory financial results for the year. Given
that the liquid petrochemicals handled by the Group are applicable
to various daily consumer products on the markets, the demand
will grow continuously from players in the plastics, paints, textiles,
solvents and petroleum industries.

The Group marked our milestone as the Group has agreed with
another shareholder of the joint venture in Weifang (“Weifang Joint
Venture”), in which each would inject capital in the amount of RMB70
million into Weifang Joint Venture, resulting in an increase in the
registered capital of Weifang Joint Venture from RMB400 million
to RMB540 million for the expansion and development of Weifang
Liquid Terminal at Weifang Port. The capital injection was completed
in 2018.

Weifang Joint Venture’s operating loss in 2018 diminished
comparing with 2017, and expected to contribute a profit to the
Group in 2019. In 2018, Weifang Liquid Terminal has entered a new
era as Weifang Port, a national port in Shandong province, was
opened to foreign trade in August 2018. With the opening of the
Weifang Port to foreign users, Weifang Liquid Terminal will be able
to allow the entrance of foreign vessels and attract more foreign
customers, which signified the opening of a gateway to North-
eastern Asian economic powerhouses for the Group. As the Phase
| and Il Project of the Bulk Liquid Terminal at The West Operation
Zone, Central Port Area of Weifang Port have already commenced
operation, with Phase lll Project under construction and expected
to commence operation in the last quarter of 2019, Weifang Liquid
Terminal will become an important profit generator for the Group. In
addition, the completion and operation of the surrounding railway in
2019 will definitely enhance the flexibility and reliability of the terminal,
as well as more convenience for customers in the future.
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Weifang Liquid Terminal reaches the highest safety requirements
and is a state-of-the-art terminal project dedicated to developing for
bulk oil and chemicals storage and distribution business. It is located
at a gateway to North-eastern Asian economic powerhouses such
as Japan and South Korea and a strategic junction between Bohai
Economic Basin and Yangtze Economic Basin. As such, the leading
position of Dragon Crown in China’s liquid petrochemical industry
can be consolidated.

Looking forward, as the economic environment and global economy
is full of uncertainties, the Group will sail through the challenges by
maintaining stable growth and performance. We will continue to
monitor the cash flows closely to ensure the Group has sufficient
liquidity, so as to maintain a strong financial position. Besides, we
have sufficient funding to support the sustainable development of the
Group.

DIVIDENDS

In recognition of the long-term support of our shareholders, the
Group sticks to the dividend policy as before, an interim dividend of
HK2.0 cents (2017: HK1.5 cents) per share was declared and paid
during the year. In addition, the Board has proposed a final dividend
of HK2.0 cents (2017: HK1.5 cents) per share. The total dividends
per share in 2018 was HK4.0 cents, which represents 73.0% of
the earnings per share attributable to owners of the Company for
the year. The dividend distribution is consistent with the Group’s
dividend policy. The Group has maintained the annual dividend
payout ratio exceeding 50% since listing.

SAFETY

The Group pays high attention to employee safety, and this has
been our top priority for many years now. Therefore, all liquid
petrochemical terminals and storages of the Group have to be
approved by the relevant monitoring departments of government.
Furthermore, we provide regular training to all of our staff members,
as well as develop and implement HSE (Health, Safety and
Environment) policies in accordance with national and industry
standards. Due to our upmost attention to safety, we did not
experience any material incidents in 2018. In the future, we intend
to seek further improvements in this area, with the ultimate goal of
providing safe and quality services to our customers.
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Chairman’s Statement
TEHRE

MARCHING FORWARD WITH STEADY GROWTH

Despite the challenging economic environment, we are optimistic
about the prospects for the liquid petrochemical industry. With
support from our loyal customers, an expanding consumer market
for basic petrochemical materials and petrochemical products in
China as well as the opportunities coming along with the opening
of Weifang Port to foreign customers, we believe that demand for
our services will continue to grow, and we are ready to satisfy such
growth.

With our world-class expertise and excellent facilities and services,
we have built a strong reputation and earned the trust of our
customers, which include renowned large-scale multinational
chemical enterprises and oil refineries. Capitalizing on the global
trend for outsourcing logistics arrangements, we see the opportunity
to introduce new cost-effective solutions that enable our customers
to reduce costs, increase flexibility and raise efficiencies as a whole.

The Group’s flagship operation, which is located in the Nanjing
Jiangbei New Materials High-tech Park (formerly known as Nanjing
Chemical Industry Park), the Nanjing terminal, has contributed a
stable and high profit to the Group for a continuous period. We also
commit for the continuous upgrading of the terminal and storage
facilities and services so as to better-serve our customers and
maximize our profitability. Besides, the Nanjing terminal has sufficient
land reserve for further expansion and development so that we are
ready to seize the opportunities upon high potential projects with
good investment returns arise.

The opening of Weifang Port to foreign vessels signified a new
chapter for the Bohai Economic Basin as well as North-east Asia
as it acts as a logistic hub in the region. Through our investment in
Weifang Liquid Terminal, the Group has achieved obvious logistic
advantage in Shandong Province. As the operation scale and
development of the terminal will continuously expand as Phase
Il Project is expected to commence operation in the last quarter
of 2019. We expect that it can contribute remarkable profit to the
Group in the nearest future. It will help Dragon Crown to enter and
capture the growing opportunities in China’s liquid petrochemical
industry, as well as strengthening the leading position of the Group,
improving the profitability of terminals and creating a valuable
investment opportunity for shareholders. Looking ahead, we expect
to bring more positive changes to the industry.
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On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my heartfelt gratitude to all of our business partners,
customers and most valued shareholders for their continuous
trust and support to the Group, and to our dedicated directors,
management and staffs for their valuable contributions in 2018. | look
forward to achieving further brilliant performance by all of you in the
future, and generate better returns for our shareholders.
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Directors and Senior Management
EENSHREEAE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. NG Wai Man, aged 62, is an executive director, the chairman
and the chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. NG is the founder
of our Group and is principally responsible for operation of our Board
and is the key decision-maker of our Group. He is responsible for
formulating the overall business strategic development for our Group.
Mr. NG has accumulated around 30 years of management and
operation experience in the terminal and storage of liquid chemical
products industry. Mr. NG is the founder of Dragon Source Industrial
Limited and its invested entity, Ningbo Haixiang Liquid Chemical Store
Co., Ltd. (the predecessor of Ningbo Xinxiang Liquid Chemical Store
Co., Ltd. (“Ningbo Xinxiang”)), and has managed its operation since
1988. Mr. NG was the president and legal representative of Nanjing
Dragon Crown Liquid Chemicals Terminal Co., Ltd (“NJDC”) from
April 2004 to 2007 responsible for overseeing strategic development
and management of resources. From December 1993 to September
2004, Mr. NG was a director of Ningbo Huaxiang Inspection Co.,
Ltd, a company which provides inspection, certification and testing
services. He served as the chairman and general manager from
October 1997 to October 2006 and legal representative from October
1997 to October 2007 for Ningbo Free Trade Zone Dragon Crown
Chemical International Trade Company Ltd., a trading company,
responsible for strategic business management. Mr. NG was
appointed as a director of the Company on 16 July 2010 and was re-
designated as an executive director and the chairman of the Company
on 30 November 2010. Mr. NG was then appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Company on 22 September 2017.

Mr. CHONG Yat Chin, aged 57, is an executive director of the
Company. Mr. CHONG joined our Group in 1994. Mr. CHONG is
principally responsible for business and strategic development,
major decision-making and communications with major customers.
He has accumulated around 24 years of experience in the
liquid chemical products terminal and storage industry. Prior to
joining our Group, Mr. CHONG worked for Mitsui & Company
(Hong Kong) Limited, an international conglomerate engaging in
various businesses, including worldwide logistics and financing,
development of infrastructure, for over seven years. He was in the
chemicals division and undertook business support centered around
petrochemical products chain for logistics and distribution. He was
also responsible for developing strategic partnerships and customer
relations. Mr. CHONG graduated from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong in 1986 with a Degree of Bachelor of Business
Administration. Mr. CHONG was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 30 November 2010.
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Directors and Senior Management

Ms. CHAN Wan Ming, aged 53, is an executive director of the
Company. Ms. CHAN is responsible for our Group’s day-to-day
management, administration as well as human resources management.
She joined our Group in 1988. Ms. CHAN has accumulated around
30 years of management and operation experience in the terminal and
storage of liquid chemical products industry. Prior to joining our Group,
Ms. CHAN worked for Wai Hing Company, a trading company, from
November 1986 to July 1988 responsible for arrangements in trading
of chemicals. Ms. CHAN was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 30 November 2010.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. FENG Jianping, aged 65, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 29 June 2018. Mr.
FENG is also a member of the audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee of our Board. Mr. FENG
was the executive director and vice president of Sinopec Shanghai
Petrochemical Company Limited (formerly known as Shanghai
Petrochemical Complex), a company listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(collectively the “Main Board”), from January 1996 to April 2004.
Mr. FENG was also the general manager and secretary of party
committee of the Guangzhou branch of China Petroleum & Chemical
Corporation, a company listed on the Main Board, from April 2004 to
July 2013. He also served as the group leader of the third supervisory
group in China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation from June 2013
to December 2014. Mr. FENG has considerable experience in
operations management. He graduated from Shanghai Industry
University in 1983 majoring in business management and is a senior
economist.

Mr. ZHU Wujun, aged 72, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 30 November 2010,
Mr. ZHU is also a member of the audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee of our Board. Mr. ZHU was
the deputy manager of Sinopec Yangzi Petrochemical Company
from 1985 to 1998. From 1998 to 2005, Mr. ZHU was a director and
deputy manager of Sinopec Yangzi Petrochemical Company Ltd.
From 2005 to 2006, Mr.ZHU was the deputy manager of Sinopec
Chemical Products Sales Company. Mr. ZHU was also the chairman
of Yangyang Chemical logistics and Trading Company from 1995
to 2005. Mr. ZHU graduated from Zhejiang University in 1970 with
a bachelor degree. He has obtained the qualification as a senior
economist from the assessment committee of China Petrochemical
Company which assessed his qualification according to standards
set by the State Council in 1995.
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Directors and Senior Management
EENSHREEAE

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen, aged 51, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 30 November 2010.
Mr. LAU is also chairman of the audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee of our Board. Mr. LAU served
as the financial controller of a subsidiary of NWS Holdings Limited,
a company listed on the Main Board over 3 years and had worked
with PricewaterhouseCoopers for over 5 years. Mr. LAU served as
non-executive director of ZMFY Automobile Glass Services Limited, a
company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market Board of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM”) from September 2013 to December 2014. Mr.
LAU graduated from Oregon State University with a bachelor degree
of science in Business Administration in 1989. Mr. LAU is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
as well as a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. LAU has been serving as the chief financial officer
and company secretary of Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board, since April 2003. Mr. LAU has served as
an independent non-executive director of China Qinfa Group Limited,
a company listed on the Main Board since June 2009. Mr. Lau has
also served as an independent non-executive director of SDM Group
Holdings Limited, a company Listed on the GEM, since September
2014,

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. WONG Wai Ming, aged 46, is the chief financial officer of our
Group. Mr. WONG has joined our Group since July 2018. Mr. WONG
has over 20 years of experience in auditing, accounting and finance
fields. Prior to joining our Group, he has served as key financial
position in numerous Hong Kong listed companies and international
firm of certified public accountants. Mr. WONG graduated from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s Degree (Honors)
in Business Administration. He has also been a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United
Kingdom.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. ZOU Qing Long, aged 54, is the chief operating officer of
our Group and a director of NJDC. Mr. ZOU has joined our Group
since May 2004, was the general manager of NJDC and has been
promoted as the chief operating officer of the Group since July
2017, principally responsible for our Group’s overall operation
and business development. Mr. ZOU has accumulated around 16
years of management and operation experience in the terminal
and storage of liquid chemical products industry. Mr. ZOU’s major
responsibility with the Group includes managing and coordinating
operation workflow, recruitment and training of managers under his
supervision, developing guidelines of operation and maintenance.
He is overseeing operations in our terminals in Nanjing, Ningbo and
Weifang. Prior to joining the Group, he worked in the China Maritime
Safety Administration for 16 years in which he gained valuable
maritime logistics experience. Mr. ZOU graduated from Nanjing
Political College of the Chinese People’s Liberation Army with a
bachelor degree in Economics Management in 2003.

Mr. YANG Ai Ming, aged 57, is the chairman of the board and
the legal representative of NJDC and Weifang Sime Darby Liguid
Terminal Co., Ltd. (“WSDL"). Mr. YANG has joined our Group
since December 2017, principally responsible for the monitoring
function of the board of directors of NJDC and WSDL. Mr. YANG
graduated from East China University of Science and Technology
in 1984, majoring in petroleum refining engineering and he joined
Sinopec Yangzi Petrochemical Company Limited, engaging in
technical management duties in the same year. Since 2001, he
successively served as the deputy head of HSE department, the
deputy factory director of refinery, the head of production and
operational management department, the marketing manager,
the logistics manager, the head of production technology and
operational dispatch department, the party committee secretary of
quality inspection center of Sinopec Yangzi Petrochemical Company
Limited, the vice chairman of labor union of BASF-YPC Company
Limited, etc. Mr. YANG was awarded the title of senior engineer in
1997.
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Directors and Senior Management
EENSREEAE

Mr. GU Jian Xin, aged 52, is the general manager of NJDC. Mr. GU
has joined our Group since December 2010 as the deputy general
manager of NJDC, in charge of HSE department, engineering
department and administrative and human resources department
and responsible for the coordination and contact with the industry
authorities of customs, state inspection, frontier defense, maritime
affairs, port, safety supervision, environmental protection, fire safety,
park management committee, etc. and has been promoted as
the general manager of NJDC since July 2017, mainly responsible
for the overall operation management of NJDC. Mr. GU has 30
years of working experience in the liquid chemical terminal and
storage industry and has extensive experience in areas such as
project construction, production operation, market development,
government coordination and corporate management. Mr. GU
graduated from Southeast University in Nanjing. Prior to joining
our Group, Mr. GU worked in Nanjing Port Co., Ltd. from August
1989 to January 2004, successively served as technician, secretary
to general manager, manager of engineering and technology
department, manager of development department and assistant
to general manager. He served as the deputy general manager of
Qiltanking Nanjing Co., Ltd. from January 2004 to November 2009.

Mr. LAU Chi Ming, Sammy, aged 61, is the deputy general
manager of NJDC. Mr. LAU is principally responsible for our
Group’s business and new project development of petrochemical
terminal in Nanjing. Mr. LAU has accumulated around 30 years of
management and operation experience in the terminal and storage
of liquid chemical products industry. Mr. LAU was an engineer of
ExxonMobil Hong Kong Limited from 1988 to 2004 and he assumed
management roles in HSE, logistics, operations and maintenance.
Mr. LAU graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a degree
of Bachelor of Science in Engineering in 1979. Mr. LAU was elected
as a Graduate of the Institution of Engineers, Australia on 10 January
1985 and has been included in the list of competent persons for
Class 2-inspection and certification of LPG compound and cylinder
stores by Electrical & Mechanical Services Department, Government
of Hong Kong since 6 November 1996. He joined our Group in April
2005 as a project manager.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERER AR
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. XIANG Xiao Chu, aged 63, is the general manager of
Ningbo Ningxiang Liquid Chemicals Terminal Co., Ltd. (“Ningbo
Ningxiang”) and Ningbo Xinxiang. Mr. XIANG has joined our Group
since November 1995. Mr. XIANG is principally responsible for our
Group’s overall operational management in Ningbo. Mr. XIANG
has accumulated around 26 years of management and operation
experience of which around 23 years are in the terminal and storage
of liquid chemical products industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr.
XIANG served as deputy director the factory, division deputy chief of
Human Resource and Security and an office administrator in Ningbo
No.2 Pharmaceutical Factory of Zhejiang Province from February
1988 to October 1992. During the period from November 1992
to September 1995, Mr. XIANG served as an office administrator
handling selection and recruitment of new staff, finance management
and observing compliance of HSE policies of Zhejiang Chemicals
Factory (Yongxin Company). Mr. XIANG has served as a deputy
director and director of tank field, business manager and general
manager assistant in Ningbo Ningxiang and Ningbo Xinxiang since
October 1995. Mr. XIANG completed administration management
course of Self-Study Examination of the Higher Education of Zhejiang
Province in October 1990.

Mr. LIU Bing, aged 50, is the General Manager of WSDL. Mr. LIU
has joined WSDL since December 2018, principally responsible
for the overall operational management of the company. Mr. LIU
has accumulated around 25 years of management and operation
experience in the terminal and storage of liquid chemical products
industry and gained valuable experience in operation, safety,
maintenance, customer service, and business of this industry. Prior
to joining WSDL, Mr. LIU was a Terminal Manager of Vopak SDIC
Terminal Yangpu Co., Ltd. He has extensive experience within the
area of company’s operation and management.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWED T

BUSINESS REVIEW

Dragon Crown is one of China’s leading integrated service providers
that specialized in the handling and storage of liquid petrochemical
products, operating a total of three terminals that are located in
Nanjing, Ningbo and Weifang. Strategically situated in two of the
major petrochemical industry hubs of China, the Group has set
up jetties and tank farms (together, “Terminals”) along the coastal
area to seize the rising demand from the petroleum and chemical
industries. Dragon Crown offers a high quality and comprehensive
range of liquid petrochemical terminal and storage services to
customers through its own jetties, storage tanks and dedicated
pipelines.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the throughput volume
of liquid petrochemical products handled by the Group’s Nanjing,
Ningbo and Weifang terminals reached 1,542,000 metric tonnes,
339,000 metric tonnes and 5,730,000 metric tonnes, respectively
(2017: 1,502,000 metric tonnes, 367,000 metric tonnes and
1,358,000 metric tonnes, respectively), with a combined throughput
volume of 7,611,000 metric tonnes (2017: 3,227,000 metric tonnes).

The following table provides an overview of the Group’s Terminals
and facilities as at 31 December 2018:

E 0]

EARTEALNGEABARBHEN
— F2FINRENEFREALR
ErRR - ERAETHEE=(EHE - K
SERE RN P B AT M EEE4H
EITENRE  EELERETTH
ERER(SEEE]D UNEEABT
TERARERNEFER - EABBEBAH
B RELERAEEMNTPEHEME N
2EMRREOCERGEMETRY -

REBZE2018F 12 A31HILFE - A&EE
RER - B R G ER IR REE A
mAE M E D R A1,542,000 2B + 339,000
N WE K2 5,730,000 2 ME (20174 : B A
1,502,000 2 + 367,000 AMA K 1,358,000
NWE) - AHFEH E7,611,0002 8 (2017
% 1 3,227,000 AMWF) °

TREHMA20184F 12 A 31 HRY AR LB
SER R

Terminals and facilities Nanjing Ningbo Weifang Total
BEE R R E [FIp=e = )22 st
Number of tanks TS 32 12 63 107
Storage capacity (m?) FREaE (LK) 210,000 29,000 497,000 736,000
Number of berths YA R 3 1 2 6
Berthing capacity (dwt) JERLEE 7 (S ENE) 45,000* 3,000 60,000**
Jetty designed throughput WESERRAT AL E

capacity (metric tonnes) (AWE) 4,000,000 100,000 4,000,000 8,100,000
* Comprises three berths with capacity of 20,000 dwt, 20,000 dwt * B =@ % 5 A20,000# = iF

20,000 EME & 5,000%, E M K AL
45K o

and 5,000 dwt, respectively.

* FA /R 1 1 & 30,000 & E WA K AL
45K o

> Comprises two berths with capacity of 30,000 dwt each.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The main source of the Group’s revenue and profit is derived from
its flagship terminal, situated in the Nanjing Jiangbei New Materials
High-tech Park (formerly known as Nanjing Chemical Industry
Park). The Group’s major customer, Celanese Corporation (NYSE:
CE), a world leading producer of acetyl products, is also situated
in the same high-tech park, contriouted HK$217.4 million (2017:
HK$219.0 million) in revenue to the Group, which is equivalent
10 82.8% (2017: 90.7%) of the total revenue during the year. The
business operation in Nanjing continues to contribute stable revenue
as we have established long term relationship with our customers.

The opening of Weifang Port to foreign vessels signified a new
chapter for the Bohai Economic Basin as well as North-east Asia
as it acts as a logistic hub in the region. The investment in Weifang
Liquid Terminal has therefore opened a gateway to North-eastern
Asian economic powerhouses for the Group. With the obvious
geographical and logistic advantage of Weifang Port to oil refineries
and chemical production plants located within its 300km radius,
Weifang Liquid Terminal allows the entrance of vessels with higher
Dead Weight Tonnage so as to effectively control customers’ costs.
As the Phase | and Il Bulk Liquid Terminal Project at The West
Operation Zone, Central Port Area of Weifang Port have already
commenced operation, with Phase Il Project under construction
and expected to commence operation in the last quarter of 2019,
Weifang Liquid Terminal will become an important profit generator
for the Group. In addition, the completion and operation of the
surrounding railway in 2019 will definitely enhance the flexibility and
reliability of the terminal, as well as more convenience for customers
in the future.

The Group regards Weifang Liquid Terminal as a significant
milestone for our business development. Therefore, the Group,
together with another shareholder of the joint venture in Weifang
(“Weifang Joint Venture”) have increased both capital injection and
shareholder loans into Weifang Joint Venture for the expansion
and development of Weifang Liquid Terminal at Weifang Port. The
operation and development of Weifang Liquid Terminal will definitely
benefit to the profit of the Group in future and will consolidate the
leading position of Dragon Crown in China’s liquid petrochemical
industry.

EEENWED T
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWED T

Dragon Crown is in a strong financial position, with total assets of
HK$1,341.4 million (2017: HK$1,406.0 million) and total equity of
HK$1,103.9 million (2017: HK$1,139.4 million). As at 31 December
2018, the Group has cash on hand of HK$194.9 million (2017:
HK$127.2 million) and a net cash position (2017: gearing ratio
of 9.3%). Such a healthy financial backup ensures the Group’s
sustainability.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Although China economic environment and global economies
are becoming more uncertain, the Group is optimistic about the
prospect of the industry and layout of the business. Looking ahead,
with the opening of Weifang Port to foreign vessels, the Group is
granted the opportunity to ensure core business and at the same
time exploring new market through our business expansion. The
Group plans to continue enhancing its business development in the
coastal regions of China, particularly along the Yangtze River Delta
and Bohai Bay regions, so as to further expand Dragon Crown’s
domestic and even international market.

As Weifang Liquid Terminal Phase | and Il commenced operation,
with Phase Il expected to commence operation in last quarter of
2019, the Group will be able to capture the market in North-eastern
China and North-eastern Asia. The Group believes in the great
business potential in the region and is confident that the Group can
maintain its leading role in the new market with the help of Weifang
Liquid Terminal, our most stringent safety requirements and a state-
of-the-art terminal project located at a gateway to North-eastern
Asian economic powerhouses. Together with the construction of
Weifang Liquid Terminal Phase I, it will become the largest terminal
of the Group, with total storage capacity over 660,000 m?®. Several
potential customers are in negotiation for renting the tank capacity
in Phase Il already. In addition, the construction of different railways
and transportation network around Weifang Liquid Terminal will
further strengthen our advantage in developing a remarkable role in
the industry.

With advanced operations and a highly experienced management
team at the helm, Dragon Crown is set to consolidate its leading
position as an integrated terminal service provider in China.
As it continues to grow, the Group will remain committed to
achieving better financial results and delivering greater value to its
shareholders.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERER AR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the revenue of the Group
increased by 8.7% from HK$241.5 million in 2017 to HK$262.5
million. The increase was mainly attributable to the increase in
revenue from new ethylene customers and the increase in revenue in
respect of methanol and acetic acid.

Gross profit

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the gross profit of the Group
increased by 14.6% from HK$125.5 million in 2017 to HK$143.9
million. The increase was mainly due to the increase in revenue as
mentioned above. The gross profit ratio increased slightly by 2.8%,
from 52.0% in 2017 to 54.8%.

Other income

Other income increased to HK$20.0 million from HK$15.9 million in
2017, which was mainly due to the increase in government grants.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by 11.2% from HK$45.8 million in
2017 to HK$50.9 million. The increase was mainly attributable to the
increase in loss on foreign exchange difference. Excluding the loss
on foreign exchange difference, the administrative expenses actually
decreased 6.0% comparing with last year which was mainly due to
the decrease in directors’ remuneration.

Finance costs
Finance costs for the year increased to HK$7.2 million from HK$5.6

million in 2017. It was mainly attributable to the increase of interest
rate.

BB WED T

M RBE O
L'ON
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20174 2 2. 4158815 I08.7% £2.625
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EF

HE2018F12 A1 AILFE - AEEE
2017 F 2 1.255 BB LIB MN14.6% =
1439878 7T « EFEMEZ BN Faiayie
AIEDIFTEL - EFEH 2017 F ) 52.0% &L
LB IN2.8% = 54.8% °

HAWA

HA W A B 2017 F 21,590 B A T INE
2,000 BB - FEARRBTHRLEIGN o
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11.2% 25,000 BB T ° :ZEMEBHAR
EHEZREENEM TEEELYZBE
B THAYREFEERRL6.0% =2
BARESRFHBREL -

BER A

BB KA B20174 25608 B LG INEF R
272088 WEBHRAEEF -

Annual Report 2018 FERE

17



18

Management Discussion and Analysis

BB WED T

Share of profit and loss of an associate

The associate in Tianjin was going through the liquidation process
since 2016 and the loss of HK$0.4 million for the year (2017: HK$0.1
million) was due to the administrative expenses in relation to the
liquidation.

Share of profits and losses of joint ventures

The share of profits of the joint ventures in Ningbo increased for the
year due to the savings in operating costs as a result of the reduction
in external storage tanks rental fee.

The share of loss of a joint venture in Weifang decreased in the year
when compared with that in 2017, which was mainly due to the
increase in revenue.

Since the share of profits of joint ventures in Ningbo outweighed the
share of loss of a joint venture in Weifang, the Group recorded share
of profits of its joint ventures for the year.

Tax expense

The tax expense for the year increased to HK$36.2 million from
HK$29.3 million in 2017. The increase was due to the increase in
profit for the year.

Investment in Weifang Sime Darby Liquid Terminal Co., Ltd.
(“WSDL")

The acquisition of 50% equity interest in WSDL at a consideration
of RMB60.9 million was completed on 23 May 2016 and WSDL
becomes a joint venture of the Group since then. Afterwards, the
Group had injected capital of total RMB225.0 million into WSDL in
proportion to its shareholding interest in WSDL up to 31 December
2018.

The Group had also provided shareholder’s loans to WSDL. As at 31

December 2018, WSDL was indebted to the Group in an aggregate
amount of RMB118.1 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWEDN

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING LIHMERIBRAEZAE

The Group has received approximately HK$281.1 million net REEBARRARMNN 2011 F EMESE
proceeds, after deducting underwriting fee and other related HkeEERMEMBRAR B 2SR
expenses, from listing of the Company’s shares in 2011. TE SR 2.811 88T

These net proceeds were applied up to 31 December 2018 in RIEARRIHEA2011 65 A30H 2K
accordance with the proposed applications set out in the section SRR ([HBEER]) [ RARTEI RREZIEA
headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Company’s w] —ERARNBIHEA2013F2 A6 HE
prospectus dated 30 May 2011 (the “Prospectus”) and the B[S EmEZIERE| - HEA2017E12
Company’s announcements dated 6 February 2013 headed A20BE A [ #E 2REEMSRIERAR]
“Change of use of proceeds”, dated 20 December 2017 headed MBEA2017F12 2288 A EBA
“Change in use of proceeds from the global offering” and dated 22 G2 REMHcEERAS  REFEHIE

December 2017 headed “Clarification announcement”, as follows: SFEEALZ 2018 F 12 A1 BHILERMT -

Net proceeds (HK$ million)
FERERH(BBET)
Available Utilised  Unutilised
AT &) [EX:20: RENA

Construction of second cryogenic FERR SR 2 (KR

ethylene tank LG 133.1 133.1 -
Construction of our third jetty FEEREE 3 ETEEE 46.6 46.6 -
Investing into existing projects WERRBIER 15.0 15.0 -
Investing into future business WERRRER

development opportunities LRk 5.0 - 5.0
Construction of nine general purpose BRoE—H%As

storage tanks frhE 33.3 33.3 -
General working capital —REEES 48.1 48.1 -

281.1 276.1 5.0

The Group held the unutilised net proceeds in short-term deposits or R2018F 12 A31H » AEBE B RS AME

time deposits with banks in Hong Kong as at 31 December 2018. FIEF RS BE RS EHFERERATR
BB ZIRIT °
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND GEARING

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s total bank loans amounted
to HK$175.5 million (2017: HK$228.6 million), all are Hong Kong
dollar bank loans. The Group’s cash and cash equivalents amounted
to HK$194.9 million (2017: HK$127.2 million). The Group’s
gearing ratio (net debt/(cash) to equity attributable to owners of the
Company) was not applicable (2017: 9.3%). The gearing structure
was as follows:

Net debt/(cash) B8E/(Re)FE
Equity attributable to owners KAEEB AEIERER
of the Company

BEAELE

Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s current assets and current
liabilities amounted to HK$276.6 million (2017: HK$190.3 million)
and HK$52.5 million (2017: HK$84.5 million), respectively. As at 31
December 2018, the Group’s current ratio increased to 5.3 (2017:
2.3).

The Group strives to efficiently use its financial resources and adopts

a prudent financial policy in order to maintain a healthy capital ratio
and support its business expansion requirements.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERER AR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

DEBT MATURITY PROFILE

The maturity profile of the Group’s bank loans is set out below:

BB WED T

RHERAER

AEBRITEROEFPEOREINNT -

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHIT

Repayable: FEEFRIA -
Within one year 1R 27,000 50,500
In the second year FoF 52,000 152,583
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FEIESF(RIEEEMSF) 96,500 25,500
175,500 228,583

Note: All bank loans as at 31 December 2018 are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars.

FOREIGN CURRENCY AND INTEREST RATE RISKS

The Group’s cash and bank balances were primarily denominated
in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. Its operating cash inflows and
outflows were primarily denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong
dollars. During the year, the Group did not have any material foreign
exchange exposure and had not used any financial instruments for
hedging purpose.

All bank borrowings of the Group were denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, the interest rates of these bank borrowings are calculated in
HIBOR plus a particular percentage. The Group will closely monitor
the interest rate movements and regularly review its banking facilities
so as to mitigate the expected interest rate risk.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total of 363 full
time employees (2017: 341). The Group provides competitive
remuneration package to retain its employees including salaries,
discretionary bonus, medical insurance, other allowance and
benefits in kind as well as mandatory provident fund schemes for
employees in Hong Kong and state-managed retirement benefit
schemes for employees in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”).

FHEE 170201847 12 A 31 B » PRAIRITEFIAB
TUAHE
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The Board of the Company is pleased to present this Corporate
Governance Report in the Annual Report for the year ended 31
December 2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of shareholders, enhance
corporate value, formulate its business strategies and policies, and
enhance its transparency and accountability.

The Company has adopted the principles and code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) as the basis of the Company’s
corporate governance practices.

The Company has in place a corporate governance framework and
has established a set of policies and procedures based on the CG
Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. Such policies
and procedures provide the infrastructure for enhancing the Board’s
ability to implement governance and exercise proper oversight on
business conduct and affairs of the Company.

In the opinion of the directors, throughout the year, the Company
has complied with all the code provisions as set out in the CG Code,
except for code provision A.2.1 which stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance practices
to ensure compliance with the CG Code.
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Corporate Governance Report

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors and the directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Company has also established written guidelines (the
“Employees Written Guidelines”) no less exacting terms than the
Model Code for securities transactions by employees who are likely
to be in possession of inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
by the employees was noted by the Company.

THE BOARD

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by an effective Board which oversees the
Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance and takes
decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required from a

director to perform his responsibilities to the Company, and whether
the director is spending sufficient time performing them.

AN
EREBHRE

BHEXHZRETR

AR A B BRAN L T AR BB S 1 Pk b T B
TAEFETESRR 5 ZIRETRAI([1RE
SPADD o

AAFBERE2EEEEHAERSEN &3
DHERNEZE2018F 12 A31 HIEFERND
BETIZAESTR] o

RDBRERAEBEEARANEER

BEETESFR SR EERESI(EES
EE5l ) - BRERAE AN RRNEETR -

BARBMAM BEEAREEREES
[EE

ESE

i
i

%

S

ARAHEHNESTERE EEQER
REEZ X - R RRIR - WIAKR
RAEANES B L EBARE

EXeRETHERSEEURNTHBERS

EHHER  REFEERATERERE
TTHRE -

Annual Report 2018 FERE

23



24

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises 6 directors, consisting of 3 executive
directors and 3 independent non-executive directors.

The Board currently comprises the following directors:
Executive directors:

Mr. NG Wai Man (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. CHONG Yat Chin
Ms. CHAN Wan Ming

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen
Mr. FENG Jianping
Mr. ZHU Wujun

The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time pursuant
to the Listing Rules. The independent non-executive directors are
expressly identified in all corporate communications pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

The biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out
under “Directors and Senior Management” section in this annual
report. None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
are held by Mr. NG Wai Man who is the founder of the Company and
has extensive experience in the industry.

The Board believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer in the same person is beneficial to the business
prospects and management and provides the Company with strong
and consistent leadership and allows for effective and efficient
planning and implementation of business decisions and strategies.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&EEZERERA T
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board considers that the current structure of vesting the roles of
both Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same person will
not impair the balance of power and authority between the Board
and the management of the Company. The Board shall review its
structure from time to time to ensure appropriate and timely action
to meet changing circumstances.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive directors representing one-
third of the Board with at least one of whom possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The independent non-executive directors bring a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experience and independent
judgment to the Board. Through active participation at Board
meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests, all independent non-executive directors
have made various contributions to the effective direction of the
Company.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all independent non-executive directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines as set out in the
Listing Rules.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles of
Association. The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing
Board composition, monitoring the appointment of directors
and assessing the independence of independent non-executive
directors.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company are
appointed for a specific term of one year, subject to renewal after the
expiry of the then current term.
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All the directors of the Company are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meetings. Under the Articles
of Association of the Company, at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the directors for the time being, or if their number is
not three of a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not
less than one-third shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. The Company’s Articles of Association also
provides that all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be
subject to election by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment. The retiring directors shall be eligible for re-election.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, Mr.
NG Wai Man and Mr. LAU Sik Yuen shall retire by rotation, and Mr.
FENG Jianping shall retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND
CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company. The Board has delegated to the Chief Executive
Officer, and through him, to the senior management the authority
and responsibility for the day-to-day management and operation of
the Group.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational
and financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control
and risk management systems are in place.

All directors have carried out their duties in good faith, in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations and in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders at all times.

DELEGATION OF MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of directors
and other significant financial and operational matters.
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All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable laws
and regulations are followed. Each director is normally able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and the senior
management. The delegated functions and responsibilities are
periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board
prior to any significant transactions entered into by the aforesaid
officers.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and
changes in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant.

Each newly appointed director receives formal and comprehensive
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of
the Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.

All directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
The Company regularly circulates training materials or briefings to
all directors in respect of the updates on, among other things, the
Listing Rules, the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) or other useful guidelines, the Companies
Ordinance and financial or accounting standards which may be of
the interest to the directors and benefit for them to discharge their
duties. Training session for directors will also be arranged where
necessary.
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In addition, the Company provides and circulates the directors
with monthly and regular updates relating to the Group’s business,
financial position and business environment, which aims to ensure
compliance and to enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.

All directors have provided to the Company with their training
records on a regular basis, and such records have been maintained
by the Company for accurate and comprehensive record keeping.
During the year, all directors (Mr. NG Wai Man, Mr. CHONG Yat Chin,
Ms. CHAN Wan Ming, Mr. LAU Sik Yuen, Mr. LUO Shijie (resigned
on 29 June 2018), Mr. FENG Jianping (appointed on 29 June 2018)
and Mr. ZHU Wujun) have complied with the code provisions in
relation to continuous professional development through attendance
of seminars on corporate governance, regulatory development and
other relevant topics.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with their
authority and duties. The terms of reference of the Board committees
are posted on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website and are available to shareholders upon request.

The list of the chairman and members of each Board committee is
set out under “Corporate Information” on page 171.

Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’s expense.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
The Nomination Committee comprises four members, namely,
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (chairman), Mr. FENG Jianping, Mr. ZHU Wujun

and Mr. NG Wai Man, the majority of which are independent non-
executive directors.
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The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of directors,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of directors, and assessing the independence
of independent non-executive directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects as well as factors
concerning Board diversity as set out in the Company’s Board
Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee would discuss and
agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board,
where necessary, and recommend them to the Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships,
the Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s
relevant criteria as set out in the Director Nomination Policy that are
necessary to complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board
diversity, where appropriate, before making recommendation to the
Board.

The Nomination Committee met three times during the year under
review to review the structure, size and composition of the Board
and the independence of the independent non-executive directors,
and to consider the qualifications of the retiring directors standing
for election at the Annual General Meeting and to consider and
recommend to the Board on the appointment of independent
non-executive director. The Nomination Committee considered
an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the Board is
maintained.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises four members, namely,
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (chairman), Mr. FENG Jianping, Mr. ZHU Wujun
and Mr. NG Wai Man, the majority of which are independent non-
executive directors.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.
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The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages of all directors
and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no director
or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference to
the performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee met twice during the year under
review to review and make recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration policy and the remuneration packages of all directors
and senior management.

Details of the remuneration of the senior management by band are
set out in note 11 to the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors, namely, Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (chairman), Mr. FENG Jianping
and Mr. ZHU Wujun, including one independent non-executive
director with the appropriate professional qualifications. None of
the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company’s existing external auditor.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

° To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the external auditor
before submission to the Board

° To review the relationship with the external auditor by reference
to the work performed by the auditor, its fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor
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° To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control systems and risk
management system and associated procedures

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year under
review to review the interim and annual financial results and reports
and significant issues on the financial reporting, operational and
compliance controls, the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems and internal audit function, appointment of
external auditor and engagement of non-audit services and relevant
scope of works and, connected transactions and arrangements for
employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditor twice without the
presence of the executive directors.

The Group’s accounting principles and practices and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets
out the approach to achieve diversity of the Board and is available
on the website of the Company. The Company recognizes and
embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board and sees increasing
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in maintaining the
Company’s competitive advantage.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee
will review annually the structure, size and composition of the Board
and where appropriate, make recommendations on changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and to
ensure that the Board maintains a balanced diverse profile. In relation
o reviewing and assessing the Board composition, the Nomination
Committee is committed to diversity at all levels and will consider a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and regional and industry experience.
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The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives that are relevant to the Company’s business growth
and is also committed to ensuring that recruitment and selection
practices at all levels (from the Board downwards) are appropriately
structured so that a diverse range of candidates are considered.

The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement
the Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to
time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress
made towards achieving those objectives.

At present, the Nomination Committee considered that the Board
is sufficiently diverse and the Board has not set any measurable
objectives.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for
selection and appointment of directors to the Nomination Committee
of the Company.

The Company has adopted a Director Nomination Policy which sets
out the selection criteria and process and the Board succession
planning considerations in relation to nomination and appointment
of directors of the Company and aims to ensure that the Board
has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the Company and the continuity of the Board and
appropriate leadership at Board level.
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The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the
suitability and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed
candidate, including but not limited to the following:

° Reputation for integrity

o Accomplishment and experience

° Qualifications

° Compliance with legal and regulatory requirements

° Commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest

° Independence

° Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age (18 years or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be exhaustive
and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the discretion to
nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for
the selection and appointment of new directors and re-election of
directors at general meetings. During the year ended 31 December
2018, the composition of the Board was changed with Mr. LUO
Shijie resigned as an independent non-executive director and
Mr. FENG Jianping appointed as an independent non-executive
director.

The Nomination Committee will review the Director Nomination
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the year, the Board had reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and
Written Employee Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with
the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

AN
EREBHRE

EFREDERARAREAZ QB R
HEFE 2 EEEMOTE - BEETR
A THIRE ¢

. mpEnBE

. RBRED

. &R

. HEENEEEIMET

o AR AR REERRIS AE

. Bkt

. EFFEHFENSTL BEETR
BMER B (188U L) LR
HEBE I HRER - B
TR S

FRRZEHRS2E  UHFRIMERE
T EREEIER - RERREGAIBBR
ERBEBB/EENEMAL

EERABENHBRABRRIAS LEER
ZAEFESRERESCER - REZE
201812 A31HILFE - EEE 2EKE
Frge)  BREELEDHITBLIENTE
EMBREFLERZTRBIENTES -

REZESBRIESFREBR(WER)
DAREIREL B AL -

E

-4

AMRE

k>

EECRERTOEERTAZTFANEX
ED.3.1IEFTHE A REE -

FR EFQCRIARAZEERERK
RERER BEERSMNEEABZEIR
FEZEXEER  ARAEETERERR
E B TEREETAMEEEEESINARE
STEEEATAIREXEEARERE 2K
REER -

Annual Report 2018 FE# &

33



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

ESREAEHAHFGCE

The attendance record of each director at the Board and Board
Committee meetings and the general meeting of the Company held
during the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out in the table

K%%Hﬂr‘ﬁzézomimﬂ:ﬂ HIFFER
THNERENEFLZEESEUNEART
Hxikéa’w}* OEREFIN T
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below:
Attendance/Number of Meetings
HE /R
Nomination Remuneration Audit Annual General
Name of Director Board Committee  Committee =~ Committee Meeting
EEps Exg REZEE HFMZERE EKEET RREFAE
Mr. Ng Wai Man 5/5 3/3 2/2 - 1/1
RERLE
Mr. Chong Yat Chin 5/5 - - - 1/1
HHERAE
Ms. Chan Wan Ming 5/5 - - - 11
BRERLE
Mr. Lau Sik Yuen 5/5 3/3 2/2 3/3 1/1
BHR%E
Mr. Luo Shijie (resigned on 29 June 2018) 3/3 2/2 2/2 11 11
Betth iR e 4 (R 20184 6 A 20 BEHT)
Mr. Zhu Wujun 5/5 3/3 2/2 3/3 1/1
RARELE
Mr. Feng Jianping (appointed on 29 June 2018) 2/2 11 - 2/2 -

BETEL (R2018F 6 A29BEZR )

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held meetings
with the independent non-executive directors without the presence
of other directors during the year.

Independent non-executive directors have attended general
meetings to gain and develop a balanced understanding of the view
of shareholders.

Practices and Conduct of Board Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are
normally made available to directors in advance.

Notice of regular Board meetings is served to all directors at least

14 days before the meeting. For other Board meetings, reasonable
notice is generally given.
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Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all directors at least 3 days before each
Board meeting to keep directors apprised of the latest developments
and financial position of the Company and to enable them to
make informed decisions. The Board and each director also have
separate and independent access to the senior management where
necessary.

The secretary of the meeting is responsible for taking and keeping
minutes of all Board meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated
to directors for comment within a reasonable time after each meeting
and final versions are open for directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a
director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly
convened Board meeting. The Company’s Articles of Association
contain provisions requiring directors to abstain from voting and not
to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions
in which such directors or any of their associates have a material
interest.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness to safeguard interests of shareholders, customers,
employees and the Group’s assets. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Company’s strategic objectives, and establishing and
maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems. The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading
the management and overseeing their design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems.
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The Group’s risk management and internal control systems
have been developed with the following principles, features and
processes:

(1) Identify significant risks in the Group’s operation environment;

(2)  Evaluate the impacts of those risks on the Group’s business
and the likelihood of occurrence;

(8)  Determine the risk management strategies and internal control
processes to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks; and

(4)  Perform ongoing monitor, review and revise the strategies
and processes in case of any significant change of situation,
ensuring effective communication to the Audit Committee and
the Board on all findings and the effectiveness of the systems
regularly.

The Internal Audit Department is responsible for performing
independent review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems. The Internal Audit
Department examined key issues in relation to the accounting
practices and all material controls and provided its findings and
recommendations for improvement to the Audit Committee.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the
management report and the internal audit findings, reviewed the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems, including
major financial, operational and compliance controls, as well as risk
management functions, for the year ended 31 December 2018,
and considered that such systems are effective and adequate.
The annual review also covered the resources, staff qualifications
and experiences, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting, financial reporting and internal audit functions, which
also considered to be adequate. In addition, the management
has confirmed to the Board and the Audit Committee on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Group regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information according to internal procedures and policy so as to
ensure inside information remains confidential until the disclosure of
such information is appropriately approved, and the dissemination of
such information is efficiently and consistently made.
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The Board assesses the likely impact of any unexpected and
significant event that may impact the share price and/or trading
volume and decides whether the relevant information is considered
inside information and needs to be disclosed as soon as reasonably
practicable pursuant to Rules 13.09 and 13.10 of the Listing
Rules and the Inside Information Provisions under Part XIVA of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance. The Group has strictly prohibited
unauthorized use of confidential or inside information and has
established and implemented procedures for responding to external
enquiries about the Group’s affairs, so that only the executive
directors and company secretary are authorized to communicate
with parties outside the Group.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2018.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-
sensitive information announcements and other disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory
requirements.

The Management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which
are put to the Board for approval.

The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about the
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 55 to 61.

Where appropriate, a statement from the Audit Committee
explaining its recommendation regarding the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of external auditor and the reasons why the
Board has taken a different view from that of the Audit Committee.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the remuneration paid/
payable to the Company’s external auditor, Ernst & Young, in
respect of audit services and non-audit services is set out below:

Service Category

RIS E R
Audit Services Z RS
— Annual audit —FEET

— Independent auditor letter on continuing

connected transactions A% D
Non-audit Services IEAZERT
— Review of interim results —EFF S
— Taxation services — BB ARTE

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. LEE Mei Yi (“Ms. LEE”) has been appointed as the Company’s
company secretary on 29 June 2018. Ms. LEE is an executive
director of Corporate Services of Tricor Services Limited, a global
professional services provider specializing in integrated business,
corporate and investor services.

All directors have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary on corporate governance and board practices and
matters. Mr. WONG Wai Ming, the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company has been designated as the primary contact person at the
Company which would work and communicate with Ms. LEE on the
Company'’s corporate governance and secretarial and administrative
matters.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, Ms. LEE has undertaken

not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in compliance
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder’s interests and rights, separate resolution
should be proposed for each substantially separate issue at general
meetings, including the election of individual director.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each
general meeting.

CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING
BY SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to Articles 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association, an
extraordinary general meeting shall be called by the Board on the
written requisition of any one or more shareholders of the Company,
provided that such shareholder(s) held at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company. Such meeting shall be called for the transaction of any
business specified in the written requisition to the Board or the
Secretary of the Company; and shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL
MEETINGS

There are no statutory provisions granting the right to shareholders
to put forward or move new resolutions at general meetings under
the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the Articles of Association
of the Company. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may
request the Company to convene a general meeting following the
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.
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PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries.

CONTACT DETAILS

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Unit No. 3, 18th Floor

Convention Plaza, Office Tower

No. 1 Harbour Road

Hong Kong

(For the attention of the Board of Directors/Company
Secretary)

Fax: 2587 1338

Email: myfarm@dragoncrown.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement,
or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address, except for
the registered office of the Company, and provide their full name,
contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which
will enable shareholders and investors to make the best investment
decisions.
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The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee or,
in their absence, other members of the respective committees
and, where applicable, the chairman of the independent Board
committee, are available to answer questions at shareholder
meetings.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains
a website at http://www.dragoncrown.com, where up-to-date
information and updates on the Company’s business operations
and developments, financial information and other information are
available for public access.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its Articles of Association. An up to date version of
the Company’s Articles of Association is also available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

POLICIES RELATING TO SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has in place a Shareholders’ Communication
Policy to ensure that shareholders’ views and concerns are
appropriately addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure
its effectiveness.

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of
dividends. Depending on the financial conditions of the Company
and the Group and the conditions and factors as set out in the
Dividend Policy, dividends may be proposed and/or declared by the
Board during a financial year and any final dividend for a financial year
will be subject to the shareholders’ approval. Details of the Dividend
Policy have been disclosed on pages 42 to 54 of the Directors’
Report of this annual report of the Company.
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The Board has pleasure in presenting its report together with the
audited financial statements of Dragon Crown Group Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of
the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note
1 to the financial statements. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2018 and the
Group’s financial position at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 62 to 65.

An interim dividend of HK2.0 cents (2017: HK1.5 cents) per share
was paid on 28 September 2018.

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy with effect from 20
December 2018. Subject to the relevant laws and the articles of
association of the Company, the Company, through a general
meeting, may declare dividends in any currency but no dividend shall
be declared in excess of the amount recommended by the Board.

Dividends may be declared and paid out of profit, or from any reserve
set aside from profits, share premium account or any other fund or
account which can be authorised for this purpose in accordance
with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the articles of
association of the Company.

The Company'’s ability to declare and pay dividends will depend on
the availability of dividends received from its subsidiaries, including its
subsidiaries in the PRC. For the purpose of declaration of dividend,
the amount which the Company and its subsidiaries can legally
distribute by way of dividend is reference to the profits as reflected in
their PRC statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with
PRC generally accepted accounting practices.
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Declaration of dividend is subject to the discretion of the Board,
taking into consideration of, among others, the following factors:

° operations and earnings;

° business development;

o capital requirements and surplus;

° market conditions and general financial conditions;

. contractual restrictions (if any); and

° any other factors that the Board consider appropriate.

Subject to the availability of the Company’s cash and distributable
reserves, investment requirements, cashflows and working capital
requirements and the approval of the shareholders of the Company,
where dividend is being declared in any particular financial year,
the total amount of payment shall be approximately 40% of any net
distributable profits derived from ordinary activities during such given
financial year.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK2.0 cents (2017: HK1.5 cents) per share for the year ended
31 December 2018 to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company at the close of business on
Friday, 31 May 2019. The proposed final dividend is subject to the
approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the year and a discussion
on the Group’s future business development and the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group are provided in the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 14 to 21 which form part of the
Directors’ Report. An analysis of the Group’s performance during
the year using financial key performance indicators is provided in the
Financial and Operating Highlights on page 2 which forms part of the
Directors’ Report but not part of the audited financial statements. No
important event affecting the Group has occurred since the end of
the financial year under review.

The Group is committed to supporting environmental sustainability.
Being an integrated service provider that specialized in the handling
and storage of liquid petrochemical products in the PRC, the Group
is subject to various environmental laws and regulations set by the
PRC national, provincial and municipal governments. These include
regulations on air and noise pollutions and petrochemical storage.
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During the year under review, the Group has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact on the
operations of the Group.

The Group recognizes that our employees, customers and business
partners are the keys to our sustainable development. The Group
is committed to establishing a close and caring relationship with
our employees, providing quality services to our customers and
enhancing cooperation with our business partners.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group fulfils its social responsibilities of protecting the
environment by undertaking to promote social environmental
protection in our business routines and activities. We give due
consideration to environmental protection and conservation and
incorporates environmentally friendly practices and measures into
our daily course of business.

In accordance with Rule 13.91 of the Listing Rules, the Company wiill
publish an Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report
within three months after the publication of this annual report in
compliance with the provisions set out in the ESG Reporting Guide
in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of the bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2018 are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

There was no movement in the share capital of the Company during
the year. Please refer to note 27 to the financial statements for
details.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige

the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders of the Company.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands amounted to HK$638.9 million (2017: HK$705.4
million), of which HK$24.4 million has been proposed as a final
dividend for the year. In accordance with the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands, dividend may be paid out of the amount of
HK$553.9 million (2017: HK$553.9 million) of the Company’s share
premium account subject to a solvency test and the provisions of the
Company’s memorandum and articles of association.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the total revenue to the Group’s top five customers
and largest customer accounted for 93.3% and 42.3% of the total
revenue for the year. The cost of services provided by the Group’s
top five suppliers and largest supplier accounted for 31.1% and
10.0% of the total cost of services for the year.

None of the directors or any of their associates or any shareholder
of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had beneficial
interests in the Group’s top five suppliers or customers referred to
above.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company who were in office during the year and
up to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:
Mr. NG Wai Man (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. CHONG Yat Chin
Ms. CHAN Wan Ming

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen

Mr. FENG Jianping (Appointed on 29 June 2018)
Mr. ZHU Wujun

Mr. LUO Shijie (Resigned on 29 June 2018)

Pursuant to Article 84(1) of the Articles of Association of the Company,
Mr. NG Wai Man and Mr. LAU Sik Yuen are subject to retirement by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

In addition, pursuant to Article 83(3) of the Articles of Association
of the Company, Mr. FENG Jianping is subject to re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offers
himself for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence

from each of its independent non-executive directors and at the date
of this report still considers them to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. NG Wai Man has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years which commenced on 1
December 2010. Mr. NG has entered into a renewal contract with
the Company on 2 April 2014 for a term of three years effective
from 1 December 2013 and will continue thereafter for successive
one-year terms until terminated with three months’ notice in writing
served as the other party.

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen has renewed service contract with the Company
for a term of one year effective from 1 December 2011 and will
continue thereafter for successive one-year terms until terminated
with one month’s notice in writing served as the other party.

Mr. FENG Jianping has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of one year effective from 29 June 2018 and will
continue thereafter for successive one-year terms until terminated by
either party thereto by giving to the other not less than one month’s
written notice.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, the director
is entitled to be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the
Company against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which he or she may sustain or incur in or about
the execution of his or her duties. To the extent provided that this
indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or
dishonesty which may attach to any of the directors.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and costs
associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought
against directors of companies in the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions”
in this report and note 34 (Related Party Transactions) to the financial
statements, no director nor a connected entity of a director had
a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND ESRETETBRAERERG - HRAKG
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES RESCREERRE
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of R2018F 12831 ARAIZEEN*
the directors and the chief executives of the Company in the BETBRAERARARIMERE LB (EFRE
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and FHMEEGEG ([ BHREEED ) EXV
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the BB 2 Bn - R MESTEEEIRE
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which have been FE M EEEDIZE XV EREE 7 M5 8y SF /A AN
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to SRNB MBS EKR - AR
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in HAIRIE R A LSRN E 3528 BTRE
the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO ZERMAZED AR S IRE R Al
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange e+ AT 2 iZETRIBITAE AR R K&
pursuant to the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing BT 2 B MR BN ¢

Rules were as follows:

() Interests in the shares of the Company () RAARRBRMD DS
Approximate
percentage of
existing issued
Personal Corporate share capital
Name of directors interests interests Total of the Company
L INGTEE )
BRITRE
B2 BARS ARER @t BHABEAL
Mr. Ng Wai Man (“Mr. NG”) REREE(TREE]) 125354000  767,988,0009 893,342,000 73.18%
Mr. Chong Yat Chin (‘Mr. CHONG”) ~ HBZRE([HE4E]) 16,712,000 - 16,712,000 1.36%
Ms. Chan Wan Ming B=satT 184,000 - 184,000 0.01%

Notes: BaE -

1. All interests of the directors in the shares of the Company were 1. BERERRIRNDZAEEREDARITE -
long positions.

2. Mr. NG was the beneficial owner of all the issued share capital of 2. REEDNWBERAR(HHE]) RABIEE

Lirun Limited (“Lirun”) and Sure Port Investments Limited (“Sure BERRAB([BIE]) 2BEBITRAZE

Port”) and therefore was deemed to be interested in a total of mEAA  BwRARDBEREIESE

767,988,000 shares of the Company held by Lirun and Sure Port. KRR 26 767,988,000 J& i 10 S
M o
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(i) Long positions in the shares of associated corporations of the iy RAERABIEEEBRRMD 2R

Company
Percentage of
existing issued
Name of Number of shares share capital
associated held in associated of the associated
Name of directors corporation Capacity corporation corporations
R EE RAEBEERAE
EEHE BB EE AR 514 FERAHE ERTRAEIL
Mr. NG Lirun Beneficial owner 40 100%
R pab:: EnEEA
Mr. NG Sure Port Beneficial owner 10 100%
REHE B IIE EnEEA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the Br EaiiEFEESN - 201812 A31H » &K
directors nor chief executives of the Company had any interests or RAEENETETHABTERARQF] K
short positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of HAREE B 2 ARG  BERG RES
the Company or any of its associated corporations. FEAERERIORE o
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL FERRCEZRHKE
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2018, so far as was known to the directors of the R2018%F 12 A31H » AR AEEFTAN

Company, the persons or corporations (other than directors or chief HEALTHDE(WIERANFESHFTEIT
executives of the Company) who had interests and short positions BAB)RARE 2D IEERD TSR
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in BRCEIMBIR B 5 L HIE 151 25 336 1§ /B T
the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO or as GFEzERMkBANEARNAR) 2 #m Rk

otherwise notified to the Company were as follows: 2
Approximate
percentage of
Number of shares existing issued
or underlying shares share capital
Name of shareholders Capacity held in the Company of the Company
RN B FrFR G HAELARREE#®
BRERE 514 AR A E A TRAEHNE DL
Lirun Beneficial owner® 751,488,000 61.56%
Vb BB
Mr. Ng Dan Ching Beneficial owner 117,040,000 9.59%
RNB&RE BB A
Notes: BiE -
1. All interests of the substantial shareholders in the shares of the 1. FTERRERARBIRMDZIABERED BT
Company were long position. B e
2. Mr. NG was the beneficial owner of all the issued share capital 2. REEDNNBHEBEBRTRAZERHES
of Lirun and therefore was deemed to be interested in a total of A Bt ERAERNBERERARRIZAEH
751,488,000 shares of the Company held by Lirun. 751,488,000 iR (n R B e o
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the directors of
the Company were not aware of any other persons (other than the
directors of the Company whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions in
shares, underlying shares and debentures” above) who held any
interests or short positions in the shares, or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted on 23 May 2011 (the “Share
Option Scheme”) to provide incentives to eligible participants
(including employees, executives or officers, directors including
non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors,
advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries) for their contribution to the long
term growth of the Group and to enable the Company to attract and
retain high calibre employees. During the year, no share options were
granted, exercised or cancelled by the Company under the Share
Option Scheme. There were no outstanding share options under the
Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2018.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of the executive directors (collectively the “Covenantors”) have
entered into a Deed of Non-Competition in favour of the Company
(on behalf of itself and the Group) dated 23 May 2011 (the “Deed”).
Pursuant to the Deed, each of the Covenantors shall procure that
their respective associates shall not directly or indirectly engage in
any business in competition with the existing business activity of
the Group. Relevant information on the Deed was disclosed in the
Prospectus in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders”.

The Company has received confirmations from the Covenantors
of their compliance with the terms of the Deed. The Covenantors
declared that they have fully complied with the Deed for the year
ended 31 December 2018. The independent non-executive
directors have reviewed on the confirmations from the Covenantors
and concluded that the Deed has been complied with and has been
effectively enforced.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group conducted the following non-exempt continuing
connected transactions during the year.

The table below sets out the annual caps and the actual transaction
amounts of those non-exempt continuing transactions in 2018:

Connected transactions Connected person (RMB'000)
BELS BEAL (AE&EFT)
2016 Ningbo Storage Ningbo Free Trade Zone Dragon
Agresment (Renewed) Crown Chemical Intemational
Trade Company Ltd.
(‘Ningbo FTZ Dragon Crown’)

016 F R (EEH) ERRHREMTER

BHERAA ([ERATREED)) 10,334

Annual cap

MEX S

AEERFRETAT IR RIGEBER
5 o

TREIZFIFRRITFEIZHN2018F 2
FELRIEERRSE

Actual transaction amount
EEIR ERR 58
Approx. Approx.
e g
(HK$'000) (RMB'000) (HK$'000)
(FEn)  (A\RBFR) (F7)
12,265 8,749 10,385

2016 Ningbo Storage Agreement (Renewed)

On 25 January 2016, Ningbo Ningxiang and Ningbo FTZ Dragon
Crown entered into the 2016 Ningbo Storage Agreement (Renewed),
pursuant to which Ningbo Ningxiang agreed to provide Ningbo FTZ
Dragon Crown with terminal and storage services at the Group’s
terminal in Ningbo. The term of the 2016 Ningbo Storage Agreement
(Renewedl) is for the period of three years from 1 January 2016 to 31
December 2018.

On 28 December 2018, Ningbo Ningxiang and Ningbo FTZ Dragon
Crown entered into the 2018 Ningbo Storage Agreement (Renewed),
pursuant to which Ningbo Ningxiang agreed to provide Ningbo FTZ
Dragon Crown with terminal and storage services at the Group’s
terminal in Ningbo. The term of the 2018 Ningbo Storage Agreement
(Renewed) is for the period of three years from 1 January 2019 to 31
December 2021.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&EEZERERAT
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Ningbo FTZ Dragon Crown is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Dragon
Crown Investments Limited which in turn is owned as to 98% by Mr.
NG, a director and a controlling shareholder and as to 2% by Mr.
CHONG, a director. It is principally engaged in trading of chemicals.
According to the Listing Rules, Ningbo FTZ Dragon Crown is an
associate of Mr. NG and thus a connected person. As Ningbo
FTZ Dragon Crown is a connected person of the Company, the
2016 Ningbo Storage Agreement (Renewed) constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Rule 14A.31 of the
Listing Rules.

The fees for the services provided are principally determined by
(i) the quantity of the liquid chemical products handled by Ningbo
Ningxiang; and (i) the period for the storage of the liquid chemical
products at the terminal. The price will be negotiated and agreed
between both parties with reference to the market price and the
management will take into account the price range charged by
other service providers for the same services within the port. This is
to ensure that the terms offered by Ningbo FTZ Dragon Crown to
Ningbo Ningxiang are no less favourable than those offered by other
independent third parties in the ordinary course of business.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have,
for the purpose of Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, reviewed
the continuing connected transactions set out above and have
confirmed that these continuing connected transactions have
been entered into by the Group (i) in the ordinary and usual course
of its business; (i) on normal commercial terms or better; and (i)
according to the agreement governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s shareholders
as a whole.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has not qualified its report in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above by the Group. A copy of the
auditor’s letter confirming the matters set out under Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The details of the related party transactions are set out in note 34 to
the financial statements.

The Company confirms that in relation to the related party
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2018, it has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this report, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for the reappointment as
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

By order of the Board

Ng Wai Man
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 27 March 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report

EY::

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DRAGON CROWN GROUP
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dragon
Crown Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 62 to 169, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BN E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on
the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERER A A
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continueqd) RMBEHER(Z)
How our audit addressed RMME R
Key audit matter the key audit matter BREstER EHEETEE
Impairment assessment of accounts receivable FEW AR B B BT
As at 31 December 2018, | We obtained an R2018E12 8318 | BfIE THEERE

the Group recorded accounts
receivable of HK$48,159,000,
which represented approximately
18% of the current assets of the
Group without any expected
credit losses (“ECL”) allowance.
The Group determines
impairment losses by making
debtor-specific assessment of
ECL for credit impaired debtors
and has established a provision
matrix that is based on the
Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic
environment for the remaining
group of debtors.

The estimation of impairment
loss of accounts receivable
is based on the evaluation of
collectability and ageing analysis
of accounts receivable as well as
expectation of forward-looking
factors. A considerable amount
of judgement is required in
assessing the ultimate realisation
of these receivables, taking
into consideration the current
creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each debtor.
Accordingly, we identified this as
a key audit matter. Disclosures
for accounts receivable are
included in notes 4 and 21 to the
financial statements.

understanding of
management’s processes
relating to the monitoring of
accounts receivable.

In assessing the adequacy
of the ECL provision, we
reviewed the ageing analysis
of the debtors to identify
potential collectability issues,
reviewed data used in
management’s assessment
of default rates and assessed
the reasonableness of
management’s assumptions
used in establishing
the forward-looking
adjustments. In addition, we
discussed with management
about the status of
significant individual debtors’
balance, management’s
consideration of the debtors’
specific profiles and risks,
reviewed settlement
history and assessed
management’s assumptions
used to determine the ECL
provision. We also requested
direct confirmations and
considered receipts
subsequent to the year end.

We further considered the
adequacy of the Group’s
disclosures regarding the
estimation uncertainty
involved in determining the
ECL provision.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERER A A
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERER A A
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Kam Yee.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

22/F CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

27 March 2019
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mEBEAE
Year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A31 HILFE

REVENUE

Cost of services provided

Gross profit

Other income

Gain on disposal of financial asset at
fair value through profit or loss

Administrative expenses

Finance costs

Share of profits and losses of:
Associate
Joint ventures

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Income tax
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
(HK cents)

Basic and diluted

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

Notes
BiaE
LON 6
IR ARIE A AN
EA
HAbA 7
HERA B AlBE

& RE ErEs 20
TR
b R AR 8
JE k55 1| K B4 -

LN

BEME

BRBLADEF 9

Fristi 12
FERHER

AT AL RIS
ZA/NETE 2SN
TR R

RATHEBA
s ERER
(F4L)

AR EE 14

62 Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited SEFEEEIERBRA A

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
262,491 241,464
(118,619) (115,935)
143,872 125,529
20,023 15,878
5,502 -
(50,896) (45,760)
(7,184) (5,598)
(369) (109)
1,449 (2,834)
112,397 87,106
(36,247) (29,299)
76,150 57,807
66,930 50,276
9,220 7,531
76,150 57,807
5.48 412




Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
mEZERAR

Year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A31 HILFE

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F R 76,150 57,807
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Ht2EBA A (EE)
INCOME/(LOSS)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) REEHRSGFETNDER
that may be reclassified to profit or BENEMEEmEA
loss in subsequent periods: (&) :
Share of other comprehensive FE(E—RE 2 AR HE A2 EKRA
income/(loss) of an associate (E8E) (995) 1,365
Share of other comprehensive BREELEREMEEKA
income/(loss) of joint ventures (E8E) (27,252) 30,600
Exchange differences related to BB EBNES Z5
foreign operations (32,471) 51,439
(60,718) 83,404
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREMBAHEEE
FOR THE YEAR 15,432 141,211
Attributable to: AT AT HE
Owners of the Company IN/NETE ¥ =N 8,726 129,962
Non-controlling interests eI 6,706 11,249
15,432 141,211

Annual Report 2018 FE R &



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R

31 December 2018
20184 12 A 31 H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid land lease payments
Goodwil

Investment in an associate
Investments in joint ventures
Available-for-sale investment
Prepayments

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories
Accounts and bills receivables
Prepayments, deposits

and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables, accruals and

contract liabilities
Interest-bearing bank loans
Tax payable

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES

FRBEE

W% - BB K& R
A itk

mE
R—EEE R AINE
REZRENRE
AR ENIRE
SEANEN

IR E B

FRBEERE

RBEE

&

FEMRR R e 4%

BN BE R
HL Al & WK IR

RelBREEED

mBEERE

REAE
HALRE IR - fEAt
ERMAARE
FHRERITER

e IR
mB R EAE

RBEEFE

REERRBRE

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited SEFEEEIERBRA A

Notes

B E

15
16
17
18
19
20
22
26

21

22

24
25

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TR
526,215 607,646
33,347 36,122
1,210 1,210
17,910 19,286
473,710 507,167
- 41,200

4,180 3,071
8,256 =
1,064,828 1,215,702
3,011 3,269
50,017 43,111
28,720 16,718
194,872 127,245
276,620 190,343
16,473 27,950
27,000 50,500
9,046 6,072
52,519 84,522
224,101 105,821
1,288,929 1,321,523




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing bank loans
Contract liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

NET ASSETS

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

Share capital

Reserves

Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

Ng Wai Man
RER
Director

EF

FRBAME
HRERITER
BHAE
EEHARE

FRBABRE

BEFE

R
AATREEA
FE{L R R
[LEN
G

FFERERS
REEAE

e AR R R

31 December 2018
20184 12 A 31 H

2018 2017
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
liEss THET AT
25 148,500 178,083
24 32,089 -
26 4,432 4,016
185,021 182,099
1,103,908 1,139,424
27 122,063 122,063
29 931,631 965,743
1,053,694 1,087,806
50,214 51,618
1,103,908 1,139,424
Chong Yat Chin
HAS
Director
EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
meERBEK

Year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A31 HILFE

At January 2018
Proft for he year
Other comorehensive loss for the year:
Share of other comprehensiie oss
of an associate
Share of other comprehensive oss
Ofjoint ventures
Exchange diferences refated fo foreign
operatons

Total compreensive income/oss) for the year
Appropriaton to statutory reserve

Final 2017 diicend

Interim 2018 dhicend

Divicend declared to non-controling nferests

At 31 December 2018

*

*k

R1BE1A18
g
EREH2EER
El-FBEA
Hh2EER
Eleets
HH2TER
BEBIH
EiZE

SRS RS

ROI8E12A31H

statement of financial position.

Note
it

Attributable to owners of the Company

RAREARR
Exchange Non-
Share Share  Reserve Captal ~ fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital -~ premium funds* reserve reserve profits Total  interests equity
i ExiE
B5 Bbig B BNER BE  REE EEI L
HKSOO0  HKSO0  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSOO0  HKSOO0  HKSOD  HKSO00
TR A TR TER TEL AR TEm TR TR
(note 29()  note 29())  (note 29(ii)
(o) (W) (ks
12208 553008 14,286 0407 67163 309979 1,087,806 51618 113044
6,930 6,930 920 176,150
(998 (998 - ]
(27,26 (27,26 - (27,25
(29,%1) (29,%7) 251 (24
(58,204 66,930 8126 6,706 15,432
1,116 (1,2 (16) 116 -
(18309 (18309 - (18,309
(443 (4413 - (24413
- (6,226) (6,226)
12208 SEIME™ 1502 20407 805" 300955*  1,0836% 50214 1,103,908

The reserve funds include the share of reserves of an associate
and joint ventures of HK$4,809,000 (2017: HK$4,739,000).

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
HK$931,631,000 (2017: HK$965,743,000) in the consolidated

JT) °

965,743,000/ 7T) °

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EFI&EEZERAR A F

* HEECOEEL—MBE R AR LR
1 1 4,800,0007% 7T (2017 & : 4,739,000/%

* ZERERREESEAMBEMRREA
B 47 A f# 931,631,000 7T (2017 4 -



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREER

Year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 B 31 HILFE

Attibutable o owners of the Company

RATRE NS
Exchange Non-
Shere Share Reserve Captel ~ fuctuafon ~ Retaied controling Total
captd — premium funds’ fesene fesene profts Total inerests equty
B EXiE

Ba BiE S B R g fohEE  BooR
Note HKSOD  HKSOOD  HKGOOD  HKSOO0  HKBODD  HKSOD  HKSO0  HKSOOD  HKSOO
Hit T TRt T TR TR TR TR T TAn

(ole29)  (rofe29f)  (note 29
(Wkoom) — (Rickoon)  (Hiskoog)
AT Janury 2017 ROTE1R1A 122,063 53908 13467 0407 (12028 306992 100434 29879 1,054,183
Proftfor the year g - - - - - 50,276 50276 7591 51807
Othercomprehensheincome for heyear, —— EREHARNA:
e of ofher comprenensve ncoe i
o anassoce TN - - - - 1365 - 1365 - 1365
Shere of oher comprehensie income Elasps
o joint ventures GRS - - - - 30600 - 30600 - 30600
Exchange iferences related o foregn HEAEED
operatons EizE - = - - LINP - LN 318 51439
Totelcomprehiensive ncome for e year ERAENAGE - - - - 79,686 0 19%2 1249 14
Approprieton o stautoryresene BEtEER - - 8 - - (%06 m m -
Finel 2016 dividend W6ERHE - = = = 28.074) (28,074 - (28,074)
Interim 2017 chicnd EEETEL 13 = = - - - (BN (1839 - (1839
Dhicend declred tonon-contoling merests SRR 28 - - - - - - - (T
At 31 December 2017 ROTER AR 122063 9583,906™ 14286™ 040 or165"  309979" 1,067,806 5618 1139424
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEHERER

Year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F 12 A31 BILFE

2018 2017
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B FHET FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM REFPHELE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ZEERE
Profit before tax FRA A& A 112,397 87,106
Adjustments for: FLAT B IEAE :
Finance costs BB 8 7,184 5,598
Bank interest income RITHIEWA 7 (2,905) (2,587)
Loan interest income BEFFBMA 7 (10,971) (9,094)
Depreciation e 9 53,832 51,900
Amortisation of prepaid SEUN i)
land lease payments THEHH 9 939 912
Loss on disposal of items of BEWE  WBE
property, plant and equipment RAEIA B EE 9 2,087 2,837
Share of profits and losses of: FE(R R 5 K E518
Associate FANE]| 369 109
Joint ventures BEE (1,449) 2,834
Gain on disposal of financial asset at HERARERTA
fair value through profit or loss BEmemEE
e (5,502) =
155,981 139,615
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL,/(8m) 90 (772)
Increase in accounts and JEBR 51 e R 0N
bills receivables (9,532) (9,339)
Decrease in prepayments, deposits AR - e REAM
and other receivables FEMFRIE R A 318 2,499
Increase in other payables, accruals HAbFEFRIA - FERT
and contract liabilities BRAREHNBELN 33,641 1,349
Cash generated from operations KRBTSR S 180,498 133,352
Tax paid BERHIE (40,922) (28,634)
Net cash flows from operating activities K& EENATEIE S
e 139,576 104,718

68 Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited SEFEEEIERBRA A



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEHERER

Year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A31 HILFE

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM REFBHESE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES ZRERE
Purchases of items of property, EEWE - BE
plant and equipment R EE= (4,736) (10,243)
Proceeds from disposal of items BEMZE - BE&R
of property, plant and equipment IHE Z iS58 20 -
Capital injections to a joint venture m—EAeERETE (46,586) (61,153)
Decrease/(increase) in loans to A (38 hn) m—RE
a joint venture AEPERBZER 51,099 (73,232)
Interest received BHFIE 2,905 2,587
Dividends received from joint ventures BEEDERE - 4,349
Decrease in time deposits with BES R RERHH
original maturity of over three BB =& H 2 & &
months when acquired BEFRL - 85,000
Proceeds from disposal of financial asset H&ERA R EFT AEZ
at fair value through profit or loss NSREE .
FT{S 38 46,702 =
Net cash flows from/(used in) wEERBE(FTH)
investing activities REmE S 49,404 (52,692)
CASH FLOWS FROM BMEEBELE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES ZEERHE
New bank loans FIZRITE R 150,000 -
Repayment of bank loans BEBITER (201,500) -
Dividends paid BERRE (42,722) (46,383)
Dividends paid to non-controlling ST IR
interests el =) (17,866) -
Interest paid BERFE (8,767) (4,598)
Net cash flows used in financing activites g & /& BFTRIR S
e ERA (120,855) (50,981)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= o~ —1
HEHERER
Year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A31 HILFE

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Time deposits with original
maturity of less than three
months when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as
stated in the consolidated
statement of cash flows

Note
BiaE

RERBRESEEY
1 nFER

REYZRE
KMEEEHEY

5 5
e FE

RERZRE
RREEEY

RERREEEY
BB

Be MRTTHR 23
BEGEREZHE
PR=EAZ
EHEFER 23

FIREARERER
ZRENREFEY

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited SEFEEEIERBRA A

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TR
68,125 1,045
127,245 123,121
(498) 3,079
194,872 127,245
91,005 52,863
103,867 74,382
194,872 127,245




Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated on 16 July 2010 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. The address of its registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands. The address of its principal place of business
in Hong Kong is Unit No.3, 18th Floor, Convention Plaza,
Office Tower, No.1 Harbour Road, Hong Kong. The Group is
principally engaged in terminal storage and handling of liquid
petrochemicals.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the ultimate
holding company of the Company is Lirun Limited, which is
a limited liability company incorporated in the British Virgin

ISR ML

31 December 2018
2018412 A 31 H

LFIRKREEH

EASEZERAERAR(ARA DR
BERE/SRAEN2010F7 A 16
HEMAZAEREBRAF - K
A alFEff =R AL Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands ° R A RIHE B E ZL ST
R BBBEE1RERESHAKN
1813 E - AEEFENERBA
e A5 SRET MR IR RS -

ARAEFERR @ NRAAREERR
AIRARRBEARES ((REEER
B EMKZZAREERRAAHE

Islands (the “BVI”).

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

December 2018 are as follows:

Place of Issued

incorporation/ ordinary/

registration registered

Name and business share capital
Rali7AYe B&fT

£ ERER L8 /ERRE
Ocean Anead Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$100
ARGBREE/BE 100%7T

Edford Investments Limited BVI/Hong Kong USS$1
SFRERRAT] ABUBREE/BE 157
Dragon Bussan International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary US$600,000
EANERRAR EB Non-voting deferred
1US$900,000 (note)

LR 600,000

ERZREL

#:900,000%7

(PizE)

BRAR -

TRMBARZER

ARAA 20184 12 A 31 H A= Eft

BRARFBENT
Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company Principal activities
RARERLRE
Bk TEXK
Direct Indirect
B ;3
100 - Investment holding
REER
- 100 Investment holding
REBR
= 100 Investment holding
and provision of
marketing services
REERRRMETS
R R
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Notes to Financial Statements
e e

31 December 2018
20184 12 A 31 H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1. LFRKE&EH(Z)

EFHENEARZER(E)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

ARATIN20184F 12 A 31 HAY = EHK
BARFEBIT : (&)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2018 are as follows: (continued)

72

Place of Issued Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary/ of equity
registration registered attributable to

Name and business share capital the Company Principal activities

a7 AVe 2R RAEEIRE

£ AR EB L B/ ERRE ARl TEXK

Direct Indirect
E# 3

Dragon Grown Petrochemicals Hong Kong Ordinary US$26,600,000 = 100 Investment holding and
Terminal (Holdings) Limited BE Non-voting deferred provision of finance and

ENRLRE(RE)ARAT US$500,000 note) management services

£ 26,600,000 %7 RERR RSB
ERZEEL ERIRH
#500000% 7T
(Bs)
Dragon Source Industrial Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$26,000,000 = 100 Investment holding and
EMLIBRAR i Non-voting deferred provision of accounting
HK$2,000,000 (note) services
E1A% 26,000,000 A7 REERRRM e R
BRZREL
1%2,000,000%7T
(B3E)

Nanjing Dragon Crown Liquid The People’s Republic US$52,254,820 - 90.01  Terminal storage and
Chemical Terminal Company of China (‘PRC")/ 52,254 820 %7C handling of liquid
Limited (‘NJDC") Mainland China chemicals

EREARRI THERA hEARLAE el 2R R a2
BRAA ([EREA]) (e )/ &R

QOcean Access Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100 Investment holaing and

R ER AT B 1371 provision of administrative

and technical services
RABRREE
TR

Overseas Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding and
Investment Limited 2% 10,0007 provision of business

ANEBREERAR] development service

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited SEFEEEIERBRA A
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2.1

Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Note:

The non-voting deferred shares do not entitle the holders thereof
to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting
of the respective companies. The holders of the non-voting
deferred shares are not entitled to any dividends. On a winding-
up, the holders of the non-voting deferred shares are entitled,
out of the surplus assets of the respective companies, to a
return of the capital paid up on the non-voting deferred shares
held by them to one half of the balance after a total sum of
HK$100,000,000,000,000 has been distributed in such winding-
up in respect of the ordinary shares of the respective companies.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
which had been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

2.1

ISR ML

31 December 2018
2018412 A 31 H

LFRRERH (F)
ERMBARZER ()

it -

F U B A B A BB SR K i AN Bk
AREASINE LRE - BIREEE
ERDIE A ANEREWEREMRE - RE
BE BRERECROHBAEA G
NHEEARRBEET  BREFEM
Fis BB REERGHMBZRA - &%
AERRHRAEEARMNE AR S KA
100,000,000,000,000 7% T 1% £k 58 ) = 5
2—0

EERR LREAZARTHMBER
RAEBHAERREEETZENBEK
AEEADEEFE - EFRS
BB E AR ERRR &
FHER TR °

RHEE

ZEVBRRIIBBEREGAE
(BB EFMAg ) B2 EEHB

SR (T EEHHRSER]D (8
EAETEMERELER  BEE
ZR([EAGHER] kEE) &
B AR R REE QBRI Z
BHRTEMRE - ZEMBHRKRTIRE
LA ERIRE - HRAREFED
BOREABENSBREERID
BABEBIN  ZEMBHRRIABTT
25 MAASROFBEREILT
FTT e
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Notes to Financial Statements
e e

31 December 2018
20184 12 A 31 H

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2018. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;
(o)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERAER A A

2.1

WREEE)

HREVBRRBIEARRRENEA
Al (&l [ AL E ) RBIE 20184 12
A3 BIEFEZHMBHRE - HBAF
ABANRHEERBEEHNEE (R
REBEER) BEAEEH2HEE
BHREBHZB O RERERRLZ
BREFA RS BEIREHROEN
(WASEEER THRAR I AEEER
BHRAREESNRTEN) &%
Z (o) REF - BIERIS IR I o

AR A ERXEEERERAZE
MR EHRERZIELER - RIARE
ERFEERDHREEHIREHRIE
WEEZE—IHBEEERER 8
7

HEEEHRAEMEBERERA AN
BRIRYE
HMA LB AEERMER

X

(© AEENERERBERTRE -

F B AR 2 AR T ERA R BNAR
[ ER R BRI AR E B — B2 @ FT IR
RimE - WBAR < EEHEAEE
BRIz BETAGS - BR%
FiEHER LRI ERS o



2.1

Notes to Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described above.
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (i) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.1

ISR ML

31 December 2018
2018412 A 31 H

WREEE)
SReEE(E)

BakEhEEEAZ ZAKED B
BRANRBREA A SRR - B
BE S B I A an h R B AL A R
ESBERARREEENAE #
@ WA AXARBEREERKER
AZHARZBEMZREREDNES
AR B R R BURSY

i =5 B R B R BN £ SCPT it = TR 2R )
RAZHED-RLZHEEGE - AAE
BesfERTDAEIIREHR - K
BARGAREREH(UEKE
)  MARRIIEERRS -

i AN =B R £ — B A F 2 26l
& AIgBURER()ZMBRRZE
E(eRmE) &R - (i) EFIFHER
Rz 2 BRIEE N (i) Rz A ARRA R
FHERZR ¢ WHER () EIRKEN A
ffE - (NVERBRERENRAER
(il) T AR SRR E AR AR SR -
FERREMEERA D BRI AEE
FRIEEE D TR 1B - A KEE
BRhERREENA B EKAER
HESHOBEBREHIREBEN -
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31 December 2018
20184 12 A 31 H

Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised

HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.

Amendments to

HKFRS 2

Amendments to

HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

Amendments to
HKFRS 15

Amendments to
HKAS 40

HK(FRIC)-Int 22

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial

Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue

from Contracts with Customers

Transfers of Investment Property

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 1 and

2014-2016 Cycle

HKAS 28

76 Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited SEFEEEIERBRA A
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AEECUAFEE 2 BB |ME B IRIK
T FIFTRT AR IERT AR -

EEMBREENE2  URGEEEZ T
$AEE] XBZHBRT
=z
EBURREENEL RABEHHHEE
SEERT BIE9F 2@ TA
B—HEREE
BB ERE4
FREAH
BEM RS 2R PHTA
F95
BEM RS 2R FEEFEHNZHA
F15%

BREYUBREENF BEEEYHHEE

PR BIZE15FXEE
FPEHZHA

BEGEANFA0NE BRIEYE
Hl

b (BRMBRER  JESZRENE
BZE9)-RES
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2014 —2016 EFH]
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

Other than explained below, the adoption of the above new
and revised standards has had no significant financial effect on
these financial statements.

(@ Amendments to HKFRS 2 address three main areas:
the effects of vesting conditions on the measurement
of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the
classification of a share-based payment transaction with
net settlement features for withholding a certain amount
in order to meet an employee’s tax obligation associated
with the share-based payment; and accounting where
a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-
based payment transaction changes its classification
from cash-settled to equity-settled. The amendments
clarify that the approach used to account for vesting
conditions when measuring equity-settled share-based
payments also applies to cash-settled share-based
payments. The amendments introduce an exception
so that a share-based payment transaction with net
share settlement features for withholding a certain
amount in order to meet the employee’s tax obligation
is classified in its entirety as an equity-settled share-
based payment transaction when certain conditions
are met. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that
if the terms and conditions of a cash-settled share-
based payment transaction are modified, with the
result that it becomes an equity-settled share-based
payment transaction, the transaction is accounted for
as an equity-settled transaction from the date of the
modification. The amendments have had no impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group as
the Group does not have any cash-settled share-based
payment transactions and has no share-based payment
transactions with net settlement features for withholding
tax.

2.2

ISR ML

31 December 2018
2018412 A 31 H

BiBREDRER (&)

BTSRRI E S - SR EREET R
EEETRR MR SRR EEA
B -

(@)

BEM RS ERNBE2HRERT
BE=AXE&HE  HEKRME
HABURSHEE AR D
LRGN TE REBETH
B X HEZ R EEM
BHETEENEAFELEE
FEZUBROX N ZR 58D
B RYEUBRMN XN 2R ZH)
R BARFEL S B0 SRR3R
CREZERBEGE B8
MARR - RFEE BB ER
REE AR ST 2 SRR B
BRI ARTATNERRR
EREARD I ZRE - Z
FERT S A—EBISMER -
HEETHTE  REERETT
MEEEMEME TSENA
BFRAEERE 2 ARG
IR NEADBRRES
AR 2R 5 -t
ZEERER  MASEEN
B tn ST 2 32 5 e A6 R B AR 1
RIEFT » SEHKBBRELE L
BNz 5 ARS8
EFTEBEESREEERS
ARk ZEFETBHETSHA
SEZUBRRAKKRREETE
MEAFE REA/ARKEIL
BEMARSEE AR D
ZR5 MERNRENAES
FREEFENARN M2
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Notes to Financial Statements
e e

31 December 2018
20184 12 A 31 H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
bringing together all three aspects of the accounting for
financial instruments: classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting. The Group has
recognised the transition adjustments against the
applicable opening balances at 1 January 2018.
Therefore, the comparative information was not restated
and continues to be reported under HKAS 39. The
following information sets out the impacts of adopting
HKFRS 9 on the statement of financial position, including
the effect of replacing HKAS 39’s incurred credit loss
calculations with HKFRS 9’s expected credit losses
(“ECL").

A reconciliation between the carrying amounts under
HKAS 39 and the balances reported under HKFRS 9 as
at 1 January 2018 is as follows:

22 EHRFESBREE(Z)

(b)

HKAS 39
measurement

EREHEAE0RHE

Category
55l
Financial assets SREE
Accounts and bills receivables  FEURERZ X Z 15 L&R!
Financial assets included in st AB[H - &%
prepayments, depositsand R E A ENFUE
other receivables NEmEE L3R’
Cashand cash equivalents ~ B&RBEEZEY L8R
Available-for-sale investment [t HERIRE AFS®
Financial asset at FVPL BAnEARR
MEREE N/A

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERAER A A

BAUHmELERNE 2/ T
AR2018F1 A1 8 sk 2 &
B FEHBRNRESSHE
B30k F T A < tEA R
B [EESRHITAESHERIEN
=ARFME: DERFE  RE
R EEr o AEEE 2018
F1A1 ARz =
FMRIERAE TR o FLt » B
BRI ESS A SEEREER
BT EREFRERIR -
LA & 8 51 BR 40 & A5 B 765 5
EAERIEE O SRE B ISR R RV R
2 pREESVBHRSENE
REBEEER(EBHEEE
BDBMRBEAESAERFE 395
EELEESETENTE -

R20185E1 A1 8 » BEG1E
BIZE395%TE N BREE LT H
B RS 2R 2 O 57 IB N AT 2

KRR 2 HHRIAT ¢
HKFRS 9
ECL measurement

BARERR ZRMBREENEONIE

Amount Amount Amount  Category
&8 &% &% £l
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TAT TAL
43111 = 43,111 AC?
13,136 - 13,136 AC?
127,245 - 127,245 AC?
41,200 - - N/A
- - 41,200 FVPL*
224,692 - 224,692




Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

ISR ML

31 December 2018
2018412 A 31 H

22 ERFRSBRERE (=)

(o)  (continued) () (&)
There was no significant impact from replacing the 2018 1 A1 HAB B TR
aggregate opening impairment allowance under HKAS EERIFEOFRIA THIEREER
39 with ECL allowances under HKFRS 9 on the above BEEDMAE S 2520|539
financial assets as at 1 January 2018. SRIE TR HAV R B E AR
FTemEETESEATZE o
The Group has classified its unlisted investment REBE &SRS AR
previously classified as available-for-sale investment EREMNIELMIEED B AR
as financial asset measured at fair value through profit NABEFABENEREE
or loss as this non-equity investment did not pass the REZFEBRAKREL EABBE
contractual cash flow characteristics test in HKFRS 9. BRI ELERIZE 9IRS A3
SRR o
HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
measurement measurement
ERETERE0RHE BRMBRERRZRIE
Category Amount Amount Category
LF] k2] k2] L]
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT
Financial liabilities SREE
Financial liabiliies included in -~ &t AR ENFER
other payables and accruals B ERNSREE (15,418) (15,418) AC?
Interest-bearing bank loans STERTER (228,583) (228,583) AC?
(244,001) (244,001)

0 L&R: Loans and receivables

L&R : BN U FKIE

2 AC: Financial assets or financial liabilities at amortised 2 AC : IREE SRR AT R 2 BB E S
cost SRBE
3 AFS: Available-for-sale investment 8 AFS : AJ I EIRE
4 FVPL: Financial asset at fair value through profit or g FVPL : AR B ABRMN S FE
loss B
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2018
20184 12 A 31 H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

()

HKFRS 15 and its amendments replace HKAS 11
Construction Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue and related
interpretations and it applies, with limited exceptions,
to all revenue arising from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account
for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15
provide a more structured approach for measuring and
recognising revenue. The standard also introduces
extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes
in contract asset and liability account balances
between periods and key judgements and estimates.
The disclosures are included in note 6 to the financial
statements. As a result of the application of HKFRS
15, the Group has changed the accounting policy with
respect to revenue recognition in note 3 to the financial
statements.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the modified
retrospective method of adoption. Under this method,
the standard can be applied either to all contracts at the
date of initial application or only to contracts that are not
completed at this date. The Group has elected to apply
the standard to contracts that are not completed as at
1 January 2018. The initial application of HKFRS 15 has
had no effect on the timing and measurement of revenue
recognition as at 1 January 2018.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERAER A A

2.2
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(©)

(continued)

Consideration received from customers in
advance

Before the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group recognised
consideration received from customers in advance
as other payables and accruals. Under HKFRS 15,
the amount is classified as contract liabilities which
are included in other payables, accruals and contract
liabilities. Therefore, upon adoption of HKFRS 15, the
Group reclassified HK$4,818,000 from other payables
to contract liabilities as at 1 January 2018 in relation to
the consideration received from customers in advance
as at 1 January 2018. As at 31 December 2018, under
HKFRS 15, HK$36,594,000 was reclassified from
other payables to contract liabilities in relation to the
consideration received from customers in advance.

Amendments to HKAS 40 clarify when an entity should
transfer property, including property under construction
or development, into or out of investment property. The
amendments state that a change in use occurs when
the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of
investment property and there is evidence of the change
in use. A mere change in management’s intentions for
the use of a property does not provide evidence of a
change in use. The amendments have had no impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2018
20184 12 A 31 H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 provides guidance on how to determine
the date of the transaction when applying HKAS 21
The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates to
the situation where an entity receives or pays advance
consideration in a foreign currency and recognises
a non-monetary asset or liability. The interpretation
clarifies that the date of the transaction for the purpose
of determining the exchange rate to use on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or
part of it) is the date on which an entity initially recognises
the non-monetary asset (such as a prepayment) or non-
monetary liability (such as deferred income) arising from
the payment or receipt of the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance of
recognising the related item, the entity must determine
the transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration. The interpretation has had
no impact on the Group’s financial statements as the
Group’s accounting policy for the determination of the
exchange rate applied for initial recognition of non-
monetary assets or non-monetary liabilities is consistent
with the guidance provided in the interpretation.
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2.3

Notes to Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

Amendments to Definition of a Business?
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 9

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation’

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets

HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its

HKAS 28 (2011) Associate or Joint Venture*
HKFRS 16 Leases'
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

Amendments to Definition of Material?

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

Amendments to
HKAS 19

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement’

Amendments to
HKAS 28

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures'

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments'’

Annual Improvements  Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS
2015-2017 Cycle 11, HKAS 12 and HKAS 23!

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

. No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption
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31 December 2018
20184 12 A 31 H

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and
in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business,
a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in
the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January
2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be determined
after the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are
available for adoption now.

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-
Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for
the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities
for most leases. The standard includes two elective recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-
term leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee
will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the
lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use
asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property in HKAS 40, or relates to a class of property, plant
and equipment to which the revaluation model is applied. The
lease liability is subsequently increased to reflect the interest on
the lease liability and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees
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2.3

Notes to Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

will be required to separately recognise the interest expense
on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-
of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the
lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such as
change in the lease term and change in future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine
those payments. Lessees will generally recognise the amount
of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment
to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS
16 is substantially unchanged from the accounting under
HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the
same classification principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish
between operating leases and finance leases. HKFRS
16 requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive
disclosures than under HKAS 17. Lessees can choose to apply
the standard using either a full retrospective or a modified
retrospective approach. The Group will adopt HKFRS 16 from
1 January 2019. The Group plans to adopt the transitional
provisions in HKFRS 16 to recognise the cumulative effect of
initial adoption as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings at 1 January 2019 and will not restate the
comparatives. In addition, the Group plans to apply the new
requirements to contracts that were previously identified as
leases applying HKAS 17 and measure the lease liability at the
present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted
using the Group’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of
initial application. The right-of-use asset will be measured at
the amount of the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of
any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the lease
recognised in the statement of financial position immediately
before the date of initial application. The Group plans to use
the exemptions allowed by the standard on lease contracts
whose lease terms end within 12 months as of the date of initial
application.
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31 December 2018
20184 12 A 31 H

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

As disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements, at 31
December 2018, the Group had future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in
aggregate of approximately HK$18,335,000. Upon adoption
of HKFRS 16, certain amounts included therein may need to
be recognised as new right-of-use assets and lease liabilities.
The right-of-use asset will be measured at the amount of
the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating to the lease recognised
in the statement of financial position immediately before
the date of initial application. The Group plans to use the
exemptions allowed by the standard on lease contracts whose
lease terms end within 12 months as of the date of initial
application. The Group will need to perform a more detailed
analysis to determine the amount of new right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities to be recognised arising from operating
lease commitments upon the adoption of HKFRS 16, after
taking account into the exemptions mentioned above, the
exception of short-term and low value leases, and the effects
of discounting.

Amendments to HKAS 28 clarify that the scope exclusion
of HKFRS 9 only includes interests in an associate or joint
venture to which the equity method is applied and does
not include long-term interests that in substance form part
of the net investment in the associate or joint venture, to
which the equity method has not been applied. Therefore, an
entity applies HKFRS 9, rather than HKAS 28, including the
impairment requirements under HKFRS 9, in accounting for
such long-term interests. HKAS 28 is then applied to the net
investment, which includes the long-term interests, only in the
context of recognising losses of an associate or joint venture
and impairment of the net investment in the associate or joint
venture. The Group expects to adopt the amendments on
1 January 2019 and will assess its business model for such
long-term interests based on the facts and circumstances that
exist on 1 January 2019 using the transitional requirements in
the amendments. The Group also intends to apply the relief
from restating comparative information for prior periods upon
adoption of the amendments.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the
event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.
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31 December 2018
20184 12 A 31 H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as
a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method
of accounting, less any impairment losses. Adjustments are
made to bring into any dissimilar accounting policies that may
exist. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures
is included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively. In
addition, when there has been a change recognised directly
in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and
its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s investments in the associates or joint ventures,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as part of
the Group’s investments in associates or joint ventures.
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31 December 2018
20184 12 A 31 H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit's value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises
in those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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31 December 2018
20184 12 A 31 H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings and structures 3.17%-19%
Motor vehicles 19%
Office equipment 19%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Construction in progress represents the infrastructure of a
terminal under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the
direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs
on related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group
is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included
in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in
property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.
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31 December 2018
20184 12 A 31 H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition (applicable
from 1 January 2018)” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows,
selling the financial assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both

of the following conditions are met:

° The financial asset is held within a business model with
the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows.

o The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.
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31 December 2018
20184 12 A 31 H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading, financial assets designated
upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or
financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair
value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing
in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of
principal and interest are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to
be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, as described above, debt instruments
may be designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an
accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in

the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial investments.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in
the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit
or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in the statement
of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss.
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31 December 2018
20184 12 A 31 H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and
debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in
response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in
market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised
gains or losses recognised as other comprehensive income
in the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until
the investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative
gain or loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
in other income, or until the investment is determined to be
impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the
statement of profit or loss in other gains or losses. Interest and
dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
investments are reported as interest income and dividend
income, respectively and are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss as other income in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to
sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets,
the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the assets for
the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised
in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining
life of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity
amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset
using the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity
is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
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31 December 2018
20184 12 A 31 H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under HKFRS
9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(@) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018)

The Group recognises an allowance for ECL for all debt
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECL are
based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation
of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows
will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other
credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECL are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECL are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective
of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the assessment,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset
to be in default when internal or external information indicates
that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECL except for trade
receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECL

Stage2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECL

Stage3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECL
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified
approach in calculating ECL. Under the simplified approach,
the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each
reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as
its accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in
calculating ECL with policies as described above.

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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31 December 2018
20184 12 A 31 H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried
at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured,
or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are
not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a group of
investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below its
cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and “prolonged” against the period in which the fair
value has been below its original cost. Where there is evidence
of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised
in the statement of profit or loss — is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments classified
as available for sale are not reversed through the statement of
profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to which
the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant
or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues
to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment
of impairment.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred). The present value
of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (that is, the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off when
there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral
has been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced
by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to the statement of profit or
loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable
from 1 January 2018 and HKAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.
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31 December 2018
20184 12 A 31 H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Inventories

Inventories represent consumables, tools and parts for use
in the operation, and are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out
basis. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices
less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and
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31 December 2018
20184 12 A 31 H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associate and joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised, to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, associate
and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
e recovered.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity
or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered.

Dividend income derived from the Company’s subsidiaries,
associate and joint ventures in Mainland China is subject to a
withholding tax under the prevailing tax rules and regulations of
the PRC.
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31 December 2018
20184 12 A 31 H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January 2018)
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods or services to the customer. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it
is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when
the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than
one year, revenue is measured at the present value of the
amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception. When
the contract contains a financing component which provides
the Group a significant financial benefit for more than one
year, revenue recognised under the contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction
price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Provision of terminal storage and handling services of liquid
chemicals

Revenue from the provision of terminal storage and handling
services of liquid chemicals is recognised (i) over the scheduled
period on a straight-line basis over contract terms because the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group; or (i) over time, using an input method,
because the input method recognises revenue based on the
proportion of the throughput volume incurred relative to the
service rendered by the Group.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January 2018)

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@ from the rendering of services, when the services have
been rendered;

(b) rental income, on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms;

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset;

(d) compensation income, when the Group’s legal right
has been established and the collectability is reasonably
assured; and

(e) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

Contract liabilities (applicable from 1 January 2018)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received a
consideration (or an amount of consideration that is due) from
the customer. If a customer pays the consideration before
the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a
contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Employee benefits — pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. The
subsidiary is required to contribute a certain percentage of its
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and
items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item
(i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an
advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the
date on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each
payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERER A A

FEEBREE(E)

MK

FZEVBHRRARNRBNINEE R E
T2 AEEB TS ERATTARAE
DREEH - MEBBMEREANIA
BRI ERTE - SINER S
AEBRNERRI S ENEEEE
RMPLE - WINEEENEREBE
RAFETHEERERRNINEEHE
TpH  mGEIREERBERESL
HZE BN B R ER

BINEE AT EMIEERIARTY
RERX 5 B EREXRBE - 1IMNE
AREHENFERRB NRARE
BEERCEXBRE - MBEAAE
AEFEREEMELNKEHE
1B mERZEE AR EEPN RS
BB BN TERE (AR ER
S EECREMEEBRAKEBER
FERNIAE EENBREZBTD IR
Hit 2w A B AER)

EETARANKENIEEBEES
FER R ER TR AR
BE  AXHBAEROERE - 1)
AR 5 B AR B ia R IE N
BELANIEREEIFEBREN
A o BRI Z EAMNK - Al
AEEHNHEBNE-FBMR
EBEEXHBEH -



Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries, associate
and joint ventures are currencies other than the Hong Kong
dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the
closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of those entities comprising the Group in which
their functional currencies are currencies other than the Hong
Kong dollar are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of those entities which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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31 December 2018
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHREBEZ)
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties BAEEA L
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: ETHERT « BEFEHER SRS
EARAEEA L -
(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s @ ABEIR—BALTHZATZ
family and that person BERZREKE - Mz AT :

()  has control or joint control over the Group; () S EREAEE

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or iy HAEBBERTE: =X

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of (i) BAEBENAEEERAA
the Group or of a parent of the Group; MEZEBAE

or 54
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following b)) FHEIFTRER MAENATE
conditions applies: -

()  the entity and the Group are members of the same () ZmEEAXSEBR—%
group; BB R :

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the iy ZEBRS—ERBAEE
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow RASEERE(HZE
subsidiary of the other entity); BHSAE - WBARH

FEBHBARF) ;

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the (i) REBRAEEGA/R—
same third party; F=FMAEDRE

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the vy ZEBRF=-FTEEMNEG
other entity is an associate of the third entity; B ME—EiBAZ

F=HEBNEE AR

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for V) ZRELBABEBEMNEE -
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an ZArENXm A BAEE
entity related to the Group; HEAREEAENEER

==
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b)  (continued)

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.
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31 December 2018
20184 12 A 31 H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the end of each reporting period.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Judgements
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from

those involving estimations, which has the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Income taxes

Significant management judgements on the future tax
treatment of certain transactions are required in determining
income tax provisions. The Group carefully evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions are set up
accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes in
tax legislation.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial period, are described below.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for
impairment annually and at other times when such an indicator
exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value
of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value
less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposal of the asset. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future
cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

EXErtAERR &5t (&)

Estimation uncertainty (continued) st T REM (22)
Impairment of an available-for-sale investment A &R IR B R A

Before 1 January 2018, the Group’s unlisted investment
included in available-for-sale investment is stated at cost
less impairment because the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is so significant that the Group is of the opinion
that its fair values cannot be measured reliably. The Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
are any indicators of impairment for this unlisted investment.
This unlisted investment is tested for impairment when
there are indicators that its carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value of
an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount. In determining the recoverable amount, the Group
considers various factors, such as value in use, available
data for disposing of such asset and other factors relevant
to this unlisted investment. The carrying amount of this
available-for-sale investment as at 31 December 2017 was
HK$41,200,000. Further details are given in note 20 to the
financial statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on accounts receivable

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECL for
accounts receivable. The provision rates are based on
days past due for groupings of various customer segments
that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer type). The
provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on accounts receivable
(continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECL is
a significant estimate. The amount of ECL is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast
of economic conditions may also not be representative of
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about
the ECL on the Group’s accounts receivable is disclosed in
note 21 to the financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

No separate analysis of segment information is presented by
the Group as over 90% of the Group’s revenue, results and
assets are related to the terminal storage and handling of liquid
petrochemicals business in Mainland China.

Revenue from a major customer, whose entities shown below
are within the same group and in aggregate amounting to 10%
or more of the Group’s revenue, is set out below:

Customer A ZFPA
Customer B =FB
Customer C EFEC
Customer D ZFD

ISR ML

31 December 2018
20184 12 A 31 H

EXEr3IER 55t (&)

st RREEM (42)

JEW SR TR E B 1R 1 ()

HBTEERMEENE  IAKER
R TERME B EE 2 Ma RS 1T
WEHEBEANMET - BHEEEBEES
FHIRIE R IE AL BEA R B AEE
B - AEBEBEEEBHBLRKRE
AEOEMR PRV EERER S BEA
BEREABR - BN SEERERK
TEEME B B 1B 00 & R B B F5 R 2k M
FE21 KR -

EEsBEH

HRAEERBB 0% MKA - EER
BERBNTEAMRE AL
SAFFRERRER  MAKEYL
25|20 BEREBILOMN

KB AHEREELA10%HIA LD
EBEF(ETXHATRECEBR %
®) WU AFZIT

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT TAT
111,096 103,628
77,547 77,562
22,867 21,939
5,934 15,868
217,444 218,997
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31 December 2018
20184 12 A 31 H

6. REVENUE 6. WA
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WADHTANT -
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx T
Revenue from contracts with customers KEEEEHLZ A
Provision of the terminal storage and RERES LB miSEE
handling services of liquid chemicals e TE M pE TR AR 75 262,491 241,464
Revenue from contracts with customers in Mainland China is REFEAEP G A2 YA b
recognised over time. R o
()  Disaggregated revenue information i) PIFBRAER
2018
HK$'000
FET
Business activities S|
Terminal storage services M5 SR (T AR TS 148,221
Handling services BRI AR TS 114,270
Total revenue from contracts
with customers RERFEHZIWALBEE 262,491
Revenue recognised in current reporting period that AREABERNRASTER
was included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the REHVETASLHEE -
reporting period:
2018
HK$’000
FET
Provision of the terminal storage and RER BB M
handling services of liquid chemicals 77 M R TR AR 75 1,040
(i)  Performance obligations (i) EHRME
The performance obligation is satisfied over time as BAETERSIEMHL — B
services are rendered and payment is generally due BRI » BE N ZEREEE
within 30 days from the date of billing. AIER B S H)B30 KA ©
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OTHER INCOME

An analysis of other income is as follows:

Bank interest income
Gross rental income
Loan interest income from
a joint venture
Foreign exchange gains, net
Government grants*
Others

*

to these grants.

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank loans

Notes to Financial Statements
e E
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B AR
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There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies related

RITERHFE

8.

31 December 2018
20184 12 A 31 H

Hthr A
BB ADHAT
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER TAT
2,905 2,587
885 839
10,971 9,094
- 2,810
4,372 -
890 548
20,023 15,878

- 158 488 B % S 4 B B R O AR PR MR A

HAAFA -

MR E

2018
HK$’000
FTEx

7,184

2017
HK$'000
TAT

5,598
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9. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 9. BRIREIETR
Profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BREATR AR, (GEA)
2018 2017
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
FisE FEx THIT
Depreciation e 15 53,832 51,900
Amortisation of prepaid land BALHES
lease payments O 16 939 912
Minimum lease payments MAEYMERELR
under operating leases AR IR
on office premises HERMK
and pipe racks 13,362 13,246
Auditor’s remuneration ZE AN 1,465 1,435
Directors’ remuneration I 10 4,263 6,777
Staff costs (excluding directors’ SBTKA(TEE
remuneration): EEME)
Wages, salaries and other benefits T& Fe REMER 23,853 22,838
Pension scheme contributions* RIREFTEIfHEF 4,467 4,435
28,320 27,273
Gross rental income HE WA L5 7 (885) (839)
Less: Outgoings VR 44 42
(841) (797)
Loss on disposal of items of BREWE  BEX
property, plant and equipment LETBE 2B 2,087 2,837
Foreign exchange losses/(gains), net EHEE () B8 7,876 (2,810)

* MR2018E 12 A31 H » AREE I &
SRR TR AR R E A AR D H
RREET IR (2017 4F + 48) o

* As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the
pension schemes in future years (2017: Nil).
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10.

Notes to Financial Statements

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), section
383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies

ISR ML

31 December 2018
20184 12 A 31 H

10. EF¥#&

BEEBHMERZMBRARES L
MR ([ EmRR) - FFQBHEG
£383(1)(@) * (b) * (c) K () i&A KA F]
(BRESAMNTER) ROIFE2HH R

Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of HWAEEEEMES T ¢
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as
follows:
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT THT
Fees: we
— Executive directors —HiTES - -
— Independent non-executive directors — B IEBITES 585 540
Other emoluments of executive directors: HITESH A -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REDEN 3,642 6,201
Pension scheme contributions BRIRGET IR 36 36
4,263 6,777
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind  contributions  remuneration
¢ 28 Bifke
ok RENER HE L5 BEm
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx TER TERT TERL
2018
Executive directors: HIEE
Mr. Ng Wai Man REREL - - - -
Mr. Chong Yat Chin HABEE - 1,890 18 1,008
Ms. Chan Wan Ming BREBRZ+ - 1,752 18 1,770
- 3,642 36 3,678
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 10. EEM& (&)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
¥ ZB RikE
e REMER ST A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THT TR T
2017
Executive directors: Hi1Es:
Mr. Ng Wai Man RERSEHE = = = =
Mr. Ting Yian Ann (resigned on BERAE(R20175
20 September 2017) 9 A 20 HEHE) - 2,659 - 2,659
Mr. Chong Yat Chin HRBEE - 1,839 18 1,857
Ms. Chan Wan Ming BREEa+ - 1,703 18 1,721
- 6,201 36 6,237
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors of the FARARRBBLIFNTEE LN 2
Company during the year were as follows: W -
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Mr. Lau Sik Yuen 2ISHRFEE 240 240
Mr. Feng Jianping SRS (R 2018 F
(appointed on 29 June 2018) 6 A 20 HEZRT) 120 -
Mr. Luo Shijie (resigned on 29 June 2018)  B&itt4E 54 (A 2018 4F
6 A 29 AEHT) 75 150
Mr. Zhu Wuijun KRELAE 150 150
585 540
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent FAREENB Y IENTESTHME
non-executive directors during the year (2017: Nil) B (2017 : &) »
Save as disclosed above, no remuneration was paid or Br EXFTH AN - ANEBRF AL
payable by the Group to the directors of the Company during EEMENSENARTESNE
the year (2017: Nil). (2017F : Z) o
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

11.

No remuneration was paid or payable by the Group to the
directors of the Company as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office during
the year (2017: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2017: Nil).

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two
(2017: three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set
out in note 10 above. Details of the remuneration for the year
of the remaining three (2017: two) highest paid employees who
are not directors of the Company are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind

Pension scheme contributions RIREFTEIHR

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

10.

11.

¥ra o RMREDREN

ISR ML

31 December 2018
2018412 A 31 H

EEMe (=)

FR - AKE W EERDAHENA
RAIEENME - (ER/IMAREER
R HAERMAREE IR BB E
(20174 : &) o

RAFER  HEESHEKFR BN
REMMENLHE (20175 : F) -

RAFERNAE =T BEEREM
ZROI7TFE: =R)ESE - HEFWF
BEHR EXHFE10 - 88 N =4 (2017
FRB)WFARAESTNRS
Bi{E B M F R EBREEESIT

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000
TR THET
2,667 2,617

27 18

2,694 2,635

N T T IIBENIFFESE S M
BEMHBLT :

Number of employees

EENHA
2018 2017
Nil to HK$1,000,000 0% 1,000,000/7T 2 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T ZE 1,500,000 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T ZE 2,000,000 7T - 1
3 2

No remuneration was paid or payable by the Group to the
five highest paid employees as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office during
the year (2017: Nil).

AEBERAFERY EEME N RE
NHR&EEHMERNME - FRN
ARG B B s A RS B BB
BEEE (20175 - F) -
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12. INCOME TAX 12. P81
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FExT FHET
Current — Hong Kong BVER— &
Charge for the year REEZH 38 43
Overprovision in prior years B FEERE
B (30) 21)
Current — Elsewhere BUEA — Efthith )5
Charge for the year REF T H 40,499 25,344
Underprovision/(overprovision) BEFEREIR
in prior years (FBRERE) (15) 48
Deferred (note 26) IRIE (FiisE26) (4,245) 3,885
Total tax charge for the year AEFEERHIESY L4858 36,247 29,299
Under the Hong Kong two-tiered profits tax rates regime, BEEBNSEHMAES &5F
the profits tax rate for the first HK$2 million of estimated 2,000,000 7 7T 2 i 51 F& 2R Bt s A1l 2
assessable profits is lowered to 8.25% (2017: Nil). Estimated FiR[& % 8.25% (2017 & : &) - MR
assessable profits above that amount is subject to the tax rate B il R 2 (AT IR m A 2 B
of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%). % 16.5% 1 E (2017 : 16.5%) °
Taxes on profits assessable in Mainland China have been ZNES B R B A H AR 8 BT 1S HY FE R A
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in Mainland China BN BIRIBRITER  RERIE -
in which the Group operates, based on existing legislation, BB A AR TR R T ERIE o

interpretations and practices in respect thereof.
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12. INCOME TAX (continued) 12. FRf8R(2)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax using the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the
Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax position

BARRARENBARMEREER
HATE B R 5T B E AR A A
MFAR S B AEEERRXRGE

at the Group’s effective tax rate is as follows: BV TRAR ORI BRI T
Mainland
Hong Kong China Total
&b FEIA @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FTaET FHET

2018
Profit/(loss) before tax BREGADER](B518) (12,938) 125,335 112,397
Tax at the applicable tax rates RERRETE TR (2,145) 31,334 29,189
Income not subject to tax BERA (2,489) - (2,489)
Expense not deductible for tax ORI 2,861 557 3,418
Tax loss utilised EEATIEEE (50) - (50)
Tax loss not recognised RERTIAEE 2,039 - 2,039
Adjustments in respect of current WA FE BT IE

tax of previous years 2R (30) (15) (45)
Effect of withholding tax on N5 B B A T

the distributable profits of ANE BERFIR

the Group’s Mainland China SEPEAHE

subsidiary, associate and wAETENH T E

joint ventures - 4,363 4,363
Profits and losses attributable to BEtER MRS

joint ventures and an associate RAEGE RN &R ER (178) - (178)
Tax charge for the year AEEHIERL 8 36,239 36,247
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31 December 2018
20184 12 A 31 H

12. INCOME TAX (continued)

12. P8R (&)

Mainland
Hong Kong China Total
B B A Fe
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TAT FAT
2017
Profit/(loss) before tax B RNEF (&) (14,443) 101,549 87,106
Tax at the applicable tax rates RERAREAENOBIA (2,383) 25,387 23,004
Income not subject to tax BERBUA (2,623) (43) (2,666)
Expense not deductible for tax ARIHNF AR 289 - 289
Tax loss utilised BEARIEERE (89) = (89)
Tax loss not recognised RERTIBER 4,363 - 4,363
Adjustments in respect of current BEEEAATIE
tax of previous years 2R 1) 48 27
Effect of withholding tax on 7R 6 B R B A B
the distributable profits of AR BEARR
the Group’s Mainland China BEDEN S
subsidiary, associate and wAEENRNTE
joint ventures - 3,885 3,885
Profit and losses attributable to BEPER—FEE AR
joint ventures and an associate FEfE & F &g 1E 486 = 486
Tax charge for the year ANEERIERY 22 29,277 29,299
The share of tax attributable to joint ventures of HK$1,817,000 FE(h & & M IE 21,817,000 7T
(2017: HK$2,429,000) is included in share of profits and losses (2017 4F : 2,429,000/ 7T ) + B & A
of joint ventures in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. mEERRNEGREERE BN R

BET - AFEEIEEG—BEEA
BIHIE (2017 € : 32,000387T) °

No share of tax was attributable to an associate in the current
year (2017: HK$32,000).
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13. DIVIDENDS 13. BRR
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FBTT
Interim dividend — HK2.0 cents REARR B — F R AR
(2017: HK1.5 cents) per ordinary share 2.0l (2017 4 : 1.57%4L) 24,413 18,309
Proposed final dividend — HK2.0 cents ERARRE - SR EERK
(2017: HK1.5 cents) per ordinary share 2.0781l (2017 £ : 1.5781l) 24,413 18,309
48,826 36,618
The proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December HZE2018F 12 A31 HIEFEMER
2018 is subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders KRB ENEERRAFTAS L&
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. BN BRI HEALAE ©
The proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December R 201845 A 28 H BRI EREE KX
2017 was approved at the annual general meeting on 28 May 2 FEMEHZ2017F12 A31 A 1E
2018. FEHNRRRNPRE -
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14. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 14. FRFRAAELESRRR

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on:

BREABNZAEER

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FAT
Earnings ZF|
Profit attributable to owners NAREER AE
of the Company, used in the basic & F » FARETE
earnings per share calculation BRERER 66,930 50,276
Number of shares
R EE
2018 2017
Shares ;47
Weighted average number of AARIEBEITEER
ordinary shares of the Company INHEFIE - ARETE
in issue, used in the basic BRERZF

earnings per share calculation 1,220,628,000 1,220,628,000

REZ2018F & 2017612 A31 B 1L
FE - AEBVEBEEEEETE
% -

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.
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Cost:
At 1 January 2017
Addltions
Transfers
Disposals
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2017
and 1 January 2018

Additions

Transfers

Disposals

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2018

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

XA -
R2017F1 818
NE
EH
RE
B H A%
R2017%12 431
R2018F 1718
RE
B
BE
AR

1201812 A31 B

Accumulated depreciation: 237

At 1 January 2017

Provided for during
the year - note 9

Disposals

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2017
and 1 January 2018

Provided for during
the year - note 9

Disposals

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2018

Net carrying amount:
At 31 December 2018

At 31 December 2017

2017%1 A1 H
FREE-HE9

RE

A

R2017E12 A31 B
R2018%F1 A1H
FREE-HO

RE
& i R
2018512 A31 B

REFE
1201812 A31 B

1201712 A31 B

Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2018
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15. Y%K - BERBRH
Construction  Buildings and Motor Office

in progress structures vehicles equipment Total
HRIR BTREEN RE BAZRE by
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAT TAL TAT TAL
4814 927,247 4,466 1,640 938,167
4,187 9,208 163 6 13,663
(3,636) 3,636 - = -
(2,752) (351) - (128) (8,226)
271 70,939 285 86 71,581
2,884 1,010,679 4,904 1,608 1,020,075
1,356 2,137 770 126 4,389
(1,980) 1,980 - - -
- (5,171) (776) (49) (5,996)
(124) (52,863) (246) (62) (53,295)
2,136 956,762 4,652 1,623 965,173

- 328,517 3,809 1,451 333,777

= 51,416 393 91 51,900
- (275) - (114) (389)

= 26,813 244 84 27,14

- 406,471 4,446 1,512 412,429

- 53,318 442 72 53,832
- (3,064) (776) (49) (3,889)
- (23,144) (208) (62) (23,414)

- 433,581 3,904 1,473 438,958

2,136 523,181 748 150 526,215
2,334 604,208 458 9% 607,646
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16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 16. FfTLivil &
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FHTT
Carrying amount at 1 January ®1 A1 BEEE 37,133 35,418
Amortised during the year — note 9 FARE— W9 (939) 912
Exchange realignment bE 5, A B (1,889) 2,627
Carrying amount at 31 December M 12 A 31 BEREE 34,305 37,133
Current portion included in prepayments, STATENRIE ek
deposits and other receivables E b EUGRIBR R ENEE S (958) (1,011)
Non-current portion JERENEL 33,347 36,122
17. GOODWILL 17. @8
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FATT
Cost and net carrying amount at the FY R FRAEA
beginning and end of the year K AREDFE 1,210 1,210
Impairment testing of goodwill RERE RIS

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is related
to the cash-generating unit of terminal storage and the
handling of liquid chemicals. Its recoverable amount has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year
period approved by senior management. The discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections is 8.3% (2017: 8.9%) and
cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using
an inflation rate of 5% (2017: 5%).

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the
cash-generating unit of terminal storage and the handling of
liquid chemicals. The following describes each key assumption
on which management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited SEFEEEIERBRA A

FREBEHEE B S RREL
BONEERTEREENRSEESS
iz - HeJ el EEIRUESRERE
BIMEE 2 FRERE - MBLR=E
&R % S AR B IR R 2 B
BEEmME - BensBIERAZ
I8 R 58.3% (2017 4 : 8.9%) * M
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17. GOODWILL (continued) 17. @

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued) EERERE (&)
R E— LR ITIRERERTIA - I
RMEEBReEEBNZFER

LA
ST}
ZoN

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant units.

o

BIRFE-RREENREBEEHEK
ARBABROEESAEFEESD
BRTERNERRIEEN -

Inflation rate — The basis used to determine the value assigned
to cost of sales and the revenue price is the forecast price
indices during the budget year in the PRC.

18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. R—HBEATNRE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Share of net assets B EEFE 17,910 19,286

N20184 12 A 31 HAREE 2 HEL A
AIMFEBAT ¢

Particulars of the Group’s associate as at 31 December 2018
are as follows:

Percentage of

Particulars Place of equity interest
of issued registration attributable to Principal
Name shares held and business the Group activities
BEERT &% rEEEMN
=g RGFE ST 2 RERDL TEXK
Tianjin Tianlong Registered PRC/ 65 Terminal storage
Liquid Chemicals capital of Mainland and handling of
Storage and US$1,950,000 China liquid chemicals
Transportation Co., Ltd. ** FHBE A HEL HE R RELER
RERERB(CLRHE 1,950,0003 7T SR i
BRAR
¢ Pursuant to the articles of association, the Group has e BBRAREIRAA  AEENZE
significant influence but not unilateral control over this BESATE  BEE b
entity.
* The statutory financial statements are not issued by Ernst & * EEM G MR IFR B AL KRGS

Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst &

Young global network.

The interest in the associate is indirectly held by the Company.

B 7% Pk 22 ok B R M 4% EL AL B B
REITIEE -

REERRZEEZAARABERS
5o
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18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 18. R—MBELATMHRE (&)
The following table illustrates the financial information of the TRIFPEAEBE 2HE QAR ZHEE
Group’s associate: £
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET F&TT
Share of the associate’s loss for the year JE(EBsE &N |)F N ETE (369) (109)
Share of the associate’s other JE(REGE N a]
comprehensive income/(loss) Hizmb A/ (E8) (995) 1,365
Share of the associate’s total FEREE R A2 E
comprehensive income/(loss) WA (E18) 458 (1,364) 1,256
Aggregate carrying value of the REBN R E R A
Group’s investment in an associate & 2 RERHE{E 17,910 19,286
19. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19. NEELENRSE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
Share of net assets FE(LEEFE 325,543 296,933
Goodwill on acquisition WEEEA 2 e 13,767 14,520
339,310 311,453
Loans to a joint venture m—EeEEERHIER 134,400 195,714
473,710 507,167
Loans to a joint venture of RMB93,000,000 (approximately M — f & & 4 % 2 93,000,000
HK$105,872,000) (2017: RMB103,000,000 (approximately AR (#9105,872,000 7T ) (201 74F
HK$123,672,000)) and RMB25,060,000 (approximately 103,000,000 A EE#5 (47123,672,0007%
HK$28,528,000) (2017: RMB60,000,000 (approximately 7T) 25,080,000 A R ( #28,528,000
HK$72,042,000)) are unsecured, bear interest at fixed rates 77T) (2017 4F : 60,000,000 A& (%)
of 6.0% per annum (2017: 6.0%) and 6.4% per annum (2017: 72,042,000/87T) ) M E R AEER - o
6.4%), respectively, and are repayable from 2021 to 2022 Al A 3% F 6.0% (2017 F : 6.0%) K& I%
(2017: from 2021 to 2022). The carrying amounts of loans to F6.4%(2017F : 6.4%)HIETE B X5t
a joint venture approximate to their fair values. In the opinion B I B 2021 F 2 2022 F (2017 £ :
of the directors, these loans are considered as part of the B 2021 £ & 2022 F ) SR REE © [
Group’s net investments in the joint venture. —HEELERHNER ZREER

HRnERE  EFERRRTENE
AEERALRFRFREN D
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INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures are as follows:

Name
1

Ningbo Ningxiang Liquid Chemicals
Terminal Co., Ltd.**
ERENRCHEBEBRAR"

Ningbo Xinxiang Liquid Chemical
Store Co., Ltd.**
ERFIREIARERA"

Weifang Sime Darby Liquid Terminal
Co., Ltd.* (‘WSDL") (note 30)

ESRERRCABEABAR
(TWSDLI)(Hf3E 30)

Particulars
of issued
shares held
BEEET
RipE

Paid-up capital of
RMB7,350,000
BRBA
7,350,000 AR

Paid-up capital of
RMB4,200,000
HERA
4,200,000 AR

Paid-up capital of
RMB540,000,000
HRRA
540,000,000 AR **

Place of
registration
and business

EUPES S

PRC/
Mainland
China
e/
B R,

PRC/
Mainland
China
wE/
HER

PRC/
Mainland
China
e/
HER

ISR ML

31 December 2018
2018412 A 31 H

19. REELEMRE (E)

REEEEEEMNFROT -

Percentage of
BRl

Ownership Voting Profit Principal
interest power sharing activities
BEERR REE  [EEEd TERH
60 60 60  Terminal storage and
handling of liquid
chemicals
R PmiEE
A
60 60 60  Terminal storage and
handling of liquid
chemicals
R PmEEE
kR
50 50 50  Terminal storage and

The interests in the joint ventures are indirectly held by the

Company.

& Pursuant to the articles of association, the Group has joint

control of these entities with other joint venture partners.

* The statutory financial statements are not audited by Ernst
& Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst &

Young global network.

> During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
further injected capital of RMB40,000,000 (equivalent to
approxiamtely HK$46,586,000) (2017: RMB53,000,000

(equivalent to approximately HK$61,153,000)) to WSDL.

WSDL, which is considered a material joint venture of the

Group, is engaged in terminal storage and handling of liquid

petrochemicals in Mainland China and is accounted for using

the equity method.

handling of liquid
petrochemicals
BB mEE
EHEREE

RATRHERGA S0 EHHES o

*k

B

RIBEBEIZAA - AEEEEAM
BECEBHLARENZEERE

EE MBS RRIALIE BB LG
B =575 BT ok 2 ok B B AR 4% EL AL B
NAVERK °

HE2018F12A31HILEE » A%
] WSDL i — 27 /% & 40,000,000
A BB (4% 12 46,586,000 7T )
(2017 4 : 53,000,000 A R# (4%
7 61,153,000587T)) °

WSDLAAEE —RHEENEE 0
¥ ERERBREREALRIGE
N BEIRET - WA AR ©
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19. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 19. REBLENHKRE (EZ)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial T&REMWSDLE B S E R E (B 5t
information in respect of WSDL adjusted for any differences in SHTREZERZEFELAE) 2
accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in HEE RS S M EHRRANERE

the consolidated financial statements:

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Current assets (including cash and MENEE (815 121,270,000 57T

cash equivalents of HK$121,270,000 (2017 % : 103,706,000 77T

(2017: HK$103,706,000)) ZH e RREEEY) 271,941 232,441
Non-current assets, excluding goodwill ERBEE  TREFE (B

(including construction in progress 339,519,000 7T

of HK$339,519,000 (2017 4F : 367,385,000/%7T)

(2017: HK$367,385,000)) ZHEETRE) 1,497,179 1,441,888
Current liabilities MEBEE (890,403) (733,166)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (277,348) (395,761)
Net assets BESE 601,369 545,402
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in KREBN—HEERE

ajoint venture: 2R EIER
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REB 2 AR 50% 50%
Group’s share of net assets of a joint REEEE—BEeEREL

venture, excluding goodwil BESE ToEEE 300,684 272,701
Goodwill on acquisition B EA 78 13,767 14,520
Carrying amount of the investment RE KA 314,451 287,221

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET THT

Revenue WA 134,016 44,301
Depreciation e (39,420) (10,483)
Amortisation i (1,424) (840)
Interest expenses B (43,457) (14,561)
Income tax credit/(expense) FrismiEe,/ (Fx) 125 (1,180)
Loss for the year FREIE (7,096) (15,830)

Other comprehensive income/(loss) FANEMEE

for the year WA/ (E518) (30,114) 34,723
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FREEARA

for the year (B8 B (37,210) 18,893

140 Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEHEBIZERER QT



Notes to Financial Statements
o E e

31 December 2018
20184 12 A 31 H

19. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 19.

3
1|

SELENHRE (B

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TRGEHASEENTIAEZE 25
information of the Group’s joint ventures that are not DEZEHEER -
individually material:

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Share of joint ventures’ profit for the year FE(HE B EFENEF] 4,997 5,081
Share of joint ventures’ other FEIEE &
comprehensive income/(loss) Eip 2wl A (Ei8) (1,227) AR
Share of the joint ventures’ total e 2
comprehensive income 2HEKRALLEE 3,770 6,492
Aggregate carrying amount of AREEREEDE
the Group’s investments B BIRHEE
in joint ventures 24,859 24,232
20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 20. WJEHHERRE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&T
Unlisted investment, at cost JEEMIRE B - 41,200
Under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018, the Group RIEE2018F1 A1 HRBERANES
designated the investment at fair value through profit or MRS 2ERIE 9% - NEEIEERE
loss. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group BIEANER ABRm - REIE20184F
disposed of the investment at a cash consideration of 12 A31 HIEFE  AEEEHEZK
HK$46,702,000 and a gain on disposal of HK$5,502,000 was & - HWEMR(E R 46,702,000 T
recognised. RHERZE A 5,502,00087C °

Annual Report 2018 FEH & 141



142

Notes to Financial Statements
e e

31 December 2018
20184 12 A 31 H

21. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

Accounts receivable FEU AR FR
Bills receivable e E I

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, except for new customers, where payment in
advance is normally required. The credit period is generally 30
days, extending to up to 60 days for major customers. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. The Group did not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancement over its accounts receivable balance.
Accounts receivable are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the accounts receivable at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

Current to 30 days BIERZE 30K
31 to 60 days 31 260K
61 to 90 days 61 290K
Over 90 days 90 AR E

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited SEFEEEIERBRA A

21.

FEWRR R B Rl
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
TEx TAET
48,159 41,461
1,858 1,650
50,017 43,111

B EP —RAREMNZRIN - AEE
MEFPAZZBERY - ERHP—R
RI0K - EREFHEGEHAIRAAE
RE6G0K - NEBEERIEHHE KB
BERWER - R EEESTERER
B R o NS B3 L H MR R
EHBEEAERRREMER 2R
Tt o RRUSRRAL LS -

RB|EHR - REBZZ AP MAERA
FEWRFPRER DATAA T

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
TEx TAT
32,817 33,119
12,121 6,946
3,219 1,394

2 2

48,159 41,461
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ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. BRERRRE(Z)
Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year ended 31 ERAUKRELENFIOREBEIEZE
December 2018 2018 £12 A 31 H L FEEHIRE
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date REIRE B R B EREETRE
using a provision matrix to measure ECL. The provision rates DI AT ERBAEEEE - BEX
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer DERAEBEUBERANZERE
segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer type). SHEAR (AR R AR El 5 ) #y 8@
The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, Eﬁ%%ﬁl?zﬁ o FAETH RIRBE R pnkE LS
the time value of money and reasonable and supportable - EEEBERRRE BRSNS
information that is available at the reporting date about past Eﬁi@ﬁ%l\ © 2 R T R PR A
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic 1¢ BRANESENMAISEER - —f&Mm
conditions. Generally, accounts receivable are written off N EUBRE TR HRFR S — & - BT
if past due for more than one year and are not subject to L/\ﬁhﬂlﬁﬁ BN HITIA/ERR - B
enforcement activity. As at 31 December 2018, the Group 2018¢1ZH 318 « NEEHFTEK
estimated the expected loss rate of accounts receivable is HIEHBEEEMIEE  WEHE
minimal and no ECL allowance in respect of these balances is F@Eﬁ%f‘%ﬁ?ﬂ? LB R E B IR R -
made.
Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year ended 31 HESTTEFEI9EIE N E2017E
December 2017 12 B 31 HIEFEERREIE
An ageing analysis of the accounts receivable that are not RBEEBGFTERIZE 399 - RIFIER
considered to be impaired under HKAS 39 is as follows: BEH JEHSZHE R ERER AT -
2017
HK$’'000
T
Neither past due nor impaired BE AR HA TR AR (E 33,119
Within 90 days past due A HA 90 KA 8,340
Over 90 days past due #HIQ0 KA E 2
41,461
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to B AR 8 HR 8 A R (B A FE W AR 3R T
customers for which there was no recent history of default. BB HE R GRS P AR o
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21.

22,

ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year ended 31
December 2017 (continued)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related to
independent customers that had a good track record with
the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the
Company were of the opinion that no provision for impairment
under HKAS 39 was necessary in respect of the balances as
there had not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances were still considered fully recoverable.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

Prepayments SEANE

Deposits and other receivables

Portion classified as current assets (note) ~ DB AREIEEREED (MisE)

DRERIEREEENT D

Portion classified as non-current assets

Note:

As at 31 December 2018, included in deposits and other
receivables was a receivable from WSDL, a joint venture of the
Company, of HK$18,773,000 (2017: HK$10,530,000), which was
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
deposits and receivables for which there was no recent history
of default. The carrying amounts of these deposits and other
receivables approximate to their fair values.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited SEFEEEIERBRA A
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21.

22,

BURR R RE (=)

BB ER|SEIEIE N EHE2017F
12 B 31 BIE FEWRE (&)

EEHERRENEERREB LT
F(RAEEREA RIFHNEELER)
1HE - ERNBERLR  AATEER
DR R A AR B E - BB AR
BEEGTERE 9B AR ERE
B

MR HeRHMERRE

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT T
8,509 6,653
24,391 13,136
32,900 19,789
(28,720) (16,718)
4,180 3,071

fia -

R20185F12A31H: BREERE &
HthERARIBRAREARRIZEERE
WSDL#—% 18,773,000 7T (2017 4F :
10,530,000 % 7T ) B FEURIE » 5% KB A
I BB RBIRERKIEE o

Hit B EBERBEATARE - LA
S BENEREERKIIY EHER
RIS RERHRAAR - ZFR
& REMERFRNERERL AR
BRE -
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23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23. BE&RBE&EFEY

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET T

Cash and bank balances WL NIRITER 91,005 52,863

Time deposits with original maturity of FEEZHELR=EAZ

less than three months FEHITER 103,867 74,382
Cash and cash equivalents on the RERE AR R A
consolidated statement of HERREEEY

financial position 194,872 127,245

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted
to HK$132,588,000 (2017: HK$60,486,000). RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

RAREIR  MARE (T ARE D)
FHMEMIR S KRTTAE#AE 132,588,000
7 78(2017 £ : 60,486,000/ 7T ) °
ARETHEEHIBRKEMER - A
o AR AE AR B R 3 Y N E B IR A1) K
HE - EERMNEBTEBATE  A%E
BEFEBEEEEITINEEKH IR
T BARKEEIGKEMEY -

RITHESREARTEARNERZH
BREREAE o 2B BTF SRR
F-RE=EAFTE  BFEAEED
BV IR & SR E - WIAMEFEAY A2 HA
TE BT SN R BRI B, - RITAERTF
BRI HEENTTR - EERRIFNR
17 °
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24,

OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES

Other payables H b S IR
Accruals FEETE R

Contract liabilities in relation to
deferred income

Less: Current portion

Non-current portion

As at 31 December 2017, included in other payables was
a payable of HK$1,201,000 due to Nanjing Jiangbei New
Area Administrative Committee (formerly known as Nanjing
Chemical Industry Park Management Committee), which is the
parent company of Nanjing Jiangbei New Area Construction
Investment Group Co., Ltd (“NJCI”) (formerly known as Nanjing
Chemical Industry Park Company Limited), a non-controlling
interest of the Group. The amount represented the remaining
outstanding balance due to acquiring a prepaid land lease.
Upon certain conditions being fulfilled by Nanjing Jiangbei New
Area Administrative Committee, such as land levelling, the
amount was fully settled in 2018.

As at 31 December 2017, included in other payables was
a dividend payable of HK$10,105,000 due to NJCI, a non-
controlling interest of the Group. The amount was unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand and was fully settled in
2018.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited SEFIEEEIERABRA A

24,

BRRETERANEGHAR

HttFEfI &R - Bt BRARESHA
=

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
3,404 14,238
8,564 13,712
36,594 -
48,562 27,950
(16,473) (27,950)
32,089 -

R20174F12 531 8 » EMpERFRIE
NBREENASEIFERERERT
EFEEFRFESEGR AR ([T
B2l FIEsmAtBEIXEEAR
ANE)ME AR BRmLIIEHES
BZEg(AiIBRERtEIXEE
HEEE)KFIA 1,201,000 7T ° %
CHEEERRESEN L HEEmE
T ARE B FRIAREE o R LdEHT
EERZESENE THRE (LM
FE) 1% 0 ZFIED R 2018 FAREAE

3=E
/B °

R2017F12 831 8 » EfbERMFIE
ANBIEEN A S B IR ER T E
A% 810,105,000 78 7T * ;Z 3018 A%
B R ERBREREE  WER
2018 FBEHES ©
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Notes to Financial Statements

OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (continued)

Other than the balances mentioned above, other payables are
non-interest-bearing and have an average term of one month.

The contract liabilities represented the aggregate amount of
the transaction price allocated to the performance obligations
that are unsatisfied as of the end of the reporting period.
The Group expects the transaction price allocated to the
unsatisfied performance obligations will be recognised as
revenue when the Group provides services to the customer.
As at 31 December 2017, the amounts totalling HK$4,818,000
included in other payables and accruals of the Group were
related to deferred revenue arising from the provision of
terminal storage and handling services of liquid chemicals.
Such amounts were reclassified as contract liabilities as at 1
January 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, the contract liabilities included
deferred revenue arising from the terminal storage and
handling services of liquid chemicals. The increase in contract
liabilities in 2018 was mainly due to the increase in deferred
revenue arising from the terminal storage and handling
services of liquid chemicals. Included in non-current portion of
HK$32,089,000 was contract liabilities in relation to deferred
revenue expected to be recognised in more than one year
related to provision of terminal storage service. The details
were set out in note 2.2 to the financial statements.

ISR ML

31 December 2018
2018412 A 31 H

24, HftFEFIHIEA - Bt BRAREHA

®=)

B E XX Pl ERSD - E AL RET IR
T EREFHEERBR1EA -

EREBEBEERERRDEERT
RBHNEENRZZERETE - NEE
BHRSPRERTHKBEHNEENRRSE
BERAEEREPERE QR ER
BUA - R2017F 12 A31 8 * 5t A
REEEAMEWFIBERIESTER 28
¥H 4,818,000 7% T B2 12 /R 881k B
WS PA R TT S BE IR AR e A BT
BE - ZFER2018E1 B1 BEH
PERERNALE -

MR2018F12 A31H » AHEERRE
REBCERNBERTRERRSE
HZIRIEIRA ° 2018 A 4 & &N
FTEARREBLERMNTFERET RE
B ARISE LE M IR E W AIE N © FFAE
ENEL D #32,089,00078 7T A R
HISERETREERSR —FRERK
BERANENEE - BEFEFS
BB Hs R Mt s 2.2,
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25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS 25. FHRMITHER
2018 2017
Effective interest rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 HK$'000
ERHE (%) pah:i = THr T
Current
ik FaE
Unsecured Hong Kong Interbank 2019 24,000 49,000
Offer Rate (‘HIBOR"), (2017: 2018)
plus 1.4%
Eirivi BBRTREREFE 20194
([BERTRERETE]) (2017 : 2018F)
+1.4%
Unsecured HIBOR, plus 1.9% 2019 3,000 1,500
(2017: 2018)
Eirivi BBRIRFFEFE+1.9% 20194
(20174 : 20184F)
Total current 27,000 50,500
AREHH
Non-current
FraHs
Unsecured HIBOR, plus 1.4% 2020 to 2021 123,000 149,583
(2017: 2019)
EeSinid BERTREREFE+1.4% 2020FF2021F
(20174 : 2019%)
Unsecured HIBOR, plus 1.9% 2020 to 2021 25,500 28,500
(2017: 2019 t0 2021)
Eirnil BERTRAEFENE+1.9% 202022021 &
(20174 : 2019 5 2021 )
Total non-current 148,500 178,083
AERBHD
Total 175,500 228,583
by
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25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS (continued) 25. ABRR|ITHER(E)
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn Tin
Analysed into: il
Bank loans repayable: BITEHER
Within one year 1ER 27,000 50,500
In the second year F2E 52,000 152,583
In the third to fifth years, inclusive EIE5F (B
BEME) 96,500 25,500
175,500 228,583
Notes: Pff=E -
(a)  All borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. (@  FTEERASITEHE -
(b)  The carrying amounts of bank loans approximated to their (o) HIFEHR - BITERNREER
fair values at the end of the reporting period. BERAREER
(c) As at 31 December 2017, the Company and one of its (0 M2017F12A318 ' AAa RkE
subsidiaries had guaranteed certain banking facilities of F—ENBAREAASEE RS E
the Group up to HK$51,000,000, of which Nil had been 51,000,000 & 7t &9 & THRITREE 1R
utilised. As at 31 December 2018, no bank guarantees were IR - Eh I ) A ERTE
provided by the Company and its subsidiaries. & - R2018F12A31H * AARI K

HLPE R m W MR E AT IR THELR
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26. DEFERRED TAX 26. EFEIRIA
Movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year RAFERLHBEABEREESDF
are as follows: BT -
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIEEE
Withholding
taxes
FENB
HK$000
FATT
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1A1H 4,507
Deferred tax charged to the statement of ~ BFRBZRXTGHETETIE (FizE12)
profit or loss during the year (note 12) 3,885
Withholding tax paid on repatriation of m—ERNBRARREEDRSE
earnings from a subsidiary and B (0 22 1) T sz A~ B0 TE A0 AR
joint ventures (4,626)
Exchange realignment FEE 5 S K 250
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 7201712 A31 B 201841 A1 H 4,016
Deferred tax charged to the statement of B FRIBAXRINGHELERIE (FFEE12)
profit or loss during the year (note 12) 4,363
Withholding tax paid on repatriation of m—REfEBAR AL
earnings from a subsidiary and B HH 28 7| i se A~ Y FRF0 7R
joint ventures (3,874)
Exchange realignment bE (73)
At 31 December 2018 R20184F 12 A 31 H 4,432
Deferred tax assets EERIEEE
Timing
difference
on revenue
recognition
of taxable
profit
PER BRI
ON i+
REERE
HK$’000
FET
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 M2017F1A1H - 2017F12 831 H
and 1 January 2018 & 201851 H1H -
Deferred tax credited to the statement of ST AFEREERA
profit or loss during the year (note 12) RIETIA (MisE12) 8,608
Exchange realignment bE 5 (352)
At 31 December 2018 R20184% 12 A 31 H 8,256
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Notes to Financial Statements

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 5% to
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings generated after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a
tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%.
The Group is therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by the subsidiary, associate and joint ventures
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated
from 1 January 2008.

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$140,228,000 (2017: HK$134,034,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have
not been recognised in respect of these losses as they have
arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some
time and in the opinion of the directors of the Company, it is
not considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

SHARE CAPITAL

26.

27.

ISR ML

31 December 2018
2018412 A 31 H

BIERE (2)

RIBEPBEPEMETE - MRBERM
B HIINE R ERIRIMEE BT IR
B E R 5% E10% M FEHH ° %
FIEB2008F1 A1 HREBER @ Wi
AR2007F12 A31 HZ BREEXNA
F o fii o B At B R INS A 2 P A
ERERMETEREERRE - RIAR
RIRFEHNH R - AEEmE -
HAMEES% - AL NEBEBERR
RARBEAME B AR - BEA
AREERERNK2008F 1 A1
FTiS & TR EE IR SEMNTEEL

AEBRBAELENBEER
140,228,000 7T.(20174F : 134,034,000
BTT) - AIERBAMRHEELERZ
NAEIMBRERVOEN - ARESELE
BIEEENMBARDBE—REHE
ARRPEERRTARGEEELER
Bom M A SHT R - S s
BREDRERIREE °

AR BNRAN FRER Z BB BB AL AP
BEER -
Bz &

2018
HK$’000
TR

2017
HK$'000
THET

Authorised:
4,000,000,000 (2017: 4,000,000,000)
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

Issued and fully paid:
1,220,628,000 (2017: 1,220,628,000)
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

EE
4,000,000,000 A%
(2017 4 : 4,000,000,000 %)

BREE010B Tz R 400,000

400,000

ERTRER :
1,220,628,000 f%
(2017 4F : 1,220,628,000 f%)

BREE010B T BB 122,063

122,063
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28.

29.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted on 23 May 2011 (the
“Share Option Scheme”) to provide incentives to eligible
participants (including employees, executives or officers,
directors including non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors, advisers, consultants, suppliers,
customers and agents of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries) for their contribution to the long term growth of
the Group and to enable the Company to attract and retain
high calibre employees. During the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2017, no share options were granted, exercised or
cancelled by the Company under the Share Option Scheme.
There were no outstanding share options under the Share
Option Scheme as at 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements therein
are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

(i) Capital reserve

Capital reserve mainly represents the difference between
the consideration and the book value of the share of the
net assets acquired in respect of the acquisition of non-
controlling interests.

(ii) Reserve funds

In accordance with the relevant regulations applicable in
the PRC, the Group’s subsidiary established in the PRC
is required to transfer a certain percentage of its statutory
annual profit after tax (after offsetting any prior year’s
losses), if any, to the reserve funds until the balance
of the funds reaches 50% of its respective registered
capital. Subject to certain restrictions as set out in the
relevant PRC regulations, the statutory surplus fund may
be used to offset against accumulated losses of the PRC
subsidiary. The amount of the transfer is subject to the
approval of the board of directors of the PRC subsidiary.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERER A A

28.

29.

MR i st @

AREER 201145 A 23 B RS #E
srEl ([l - B EREEE
B2 EE (BFEARD R SKEEMKB
RNAIZIEE  ITRABS SRS
EE(RRIERTES KB ILIERTT
Bx) B #%0HE - #HER T
FRARE)  BHEANEERHE
RIEH 2 BRL - REAR TR RIE
Beai8BsEE - REZE2018F &
201712 A1 HIEFEA » AR F]
BMERRERET SR D - 176k
5 B8 AR A o 7A2018F 12 A31H -
REARME T BT 2 FE AR i N B R JET T
(2017 4F : £8) o

ot 0

AEENRBEREREDE25IR
BABRBBE -

(i) BEXRHE

BAREEEREARKBEIE
B EREEMKREE
EFEREECRNEE -

(i) REEES

RIFFEERNMERER K
S E R B RS BT B A IR
BETASLBRARRR (K
HEBEFEERR)ATF
Bai (B EFEES &'
EETHEHREINSBEMERN
H150% ° &7 B B BUER
FEMETRST EAERHG
RE A AREE EKE A
AN REEE - ERSEAL
TEMBARESSNIE -



Notes to Financial Statements

29. RESERVES (continued)

(iii) Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign

exchange differences arising from the translation of the

financial statements of operations in the PRC which are

dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy set
out in note 3.

30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(@) Major non-cash transactions

U

(i)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group recorded
other payables and accruals in relation to additions
of property, plant and equipment of HK$27,000
(2017: HK$836,000). The additions have had no
cash flow impact on the Group during the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2018,
HK$462,000 (2017: HK$2,556,000) in relation to
the purchase of property, plant and equipment
was transferred from prepayments to property,
plant and equipment.

During the year ended 31 December 2018,
loan interest income of HK$10,971,000 (2017:
HK$9,094,000) from a joint venture was settled
through a receivable from a joint venture.

20. Gkl (&)

ISR ML

31 December 2018
20184 12 A 31 H

(iii) EXREEE

EHRBREEREEREE
BB RR B E LR PTA IME
ZE - WIREM S FAEHEE
BREEHE ©

30. REREREBRME

(@) EEFREXRS

@

(i)

MR 2018412 A31 H -
AEBEHEBERAREY
¥ BEREREHEME
RFIE K FEET & 27,000
7570 (20174F © 836,000/
TL) e RABHAEEE
£ 2018 F & 201712 A
31 BIEFERW B LT

= 8/ 48
BErE°

#H E2018412 431 H Lt
FE - EHABEME K
5 I 384 B IE 462,000/
75 (2017 5 : 2,556,00078
TT) JEEEYE - HE R
B a i NE

HZE2018F12 831 H L4
B RE—EEELED
10,971,000 7T (20174 -
9,094,000/ 7T ) B3 F &
WABBEK—HEED
ERERFAE ©
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 30. FEHS&RERMEE)
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) RETEFEENEERE

activities

Interest-

bearing

bank loans

FTEBRITER

HK$’000

FExT

At 1 January 2017 R20179F1 A1H 227,583

Changes from financing cash flows BEREREE (4,598)

Interest expenses FEFRZ 5,598

At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 #2017 %12 A31 H X% 20181 A1 H 228,583

Changes from financing cash flows BERESREED (60,267)

Interest expenses FEFE 7,184

At 31 December 2018 R20184F 12 A31 H 175,500
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Notes to Financial Statements

PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL 31.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Details of the Group’s subsidiary that has material non-

controlling interests are set out below:

NJDC

Percentage of equity interest held by
non-controlling interests in NJDC

Profit for the year allocated to
non-controlling interests

Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests of NJDC

Accumulated balances of non-controlling
interests at the end of the
reporting period

IRV RAE s P P AR BEF
BHEB DL

FADE T IS
il

S TR R AR
Rz 2 BB

IR RS B
Z RIERER

ISR ML

31 December 2018
20184 12 A 31 H

WA EAFERUEZBIAEM
BLE
R RSV I EA IR 2
AKEHBARE
CELE
2018 2017
9.99% 9.99%
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
F87T T
9,220 7,531
17,866 =
50,214 51,618
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31. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL 31. MEEXERRERIBIEBMN
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued) BAT (&)
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial T 3% 5 AR A B B R B 0 B S B RHBE
information of the above subsidiary. The amounts disclosed 2 - FIRBE SR AREER AR MY
are before any inter-company eliminations: 8
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT T
Revenue WA 262,491 241,464
Other income E U A 6,623 1,681
Total expenses BHEx (175,655) (166,988)
Profit for the year F 93,459 76,157
Total comprehensive income for the year ~— FRZ2ER A 4258 68,507 113,168
Current assets TmENEE 86,197 85,488
Non-current assets EREEE 580,830 655,745
Current liabilities nBBE (112,269) (178,316)
Non-current liabilities JEMEAE (32,089) (26,415)
Net cash flows from operating activities RS SEE SIS e REE 145,934 128,695
Net cash flows used in investing activities & & /EE)FTHIR &7 2558 (4,113) (13,255)
Net cash flows used in financing activites ~ gt & &R S e 558 (148,765) (121,247)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents R4 RIR&ZEWRIIEE (6,944) (5,807)
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32. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 32. BEHERHE
(a) As lessor (a) EBHBEA
The Group leases a certain portion of its office building AEEREBELKEHELTHEE
under an operating lease arrangement, with a lease EEFIENE T 0 ZHEL
negotiated for a term of five years (2017: five years). WEASEH (20174 : 5E)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total RS AR - AN& B3 A
future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable HEEHENRRREE B
operating leases with its tenant falling due as follows: AR T 51| B A8 P MR
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHBT FABT
Within one year 16K 869 902
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F2ESF (BIEEEMT) 2,028 3,005
2,897 3,907
(b) Aslessee (b) EREFBA
The Group leases a certain portion of its office premises AEBREBESEHELHEE
and pipe racks under operating lease arrangements. The HETHAMERER - %5F
leases are negotiated for terms ranging from one to three MAFEWE R 1234 (2017
years (2017: three to fifteen years). F:3E15%F) o
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total REEHR - AREE AT
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable HEEHER AR R HEH A
operating leases falling due as follows: AN THIFHERAT
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHBT FAT
Within one year 1ERN 14,375 11,657
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F2ESF(PEEREME) 3,960 32,011
18,335 43,668
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33. COMMITMENTS 33. KiE
In addition to the operating lease arrangements detailed in M EXHisE 32 At S E 2 HE 2
note 32 above, the Group had the following capital expenditure N RIREHIR - KEFAF B R
commitments at the end of the reporting period: B S A HE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT T
Contracted, but not provided for: BEET4) « (BREHE -
Buildings and structures EFEREEY) 8,187 4,820
Capital injection to a joint venture M—EEERETE - 48,028
8,187 52,848
In addition, the Group’s share of a joint venture’s own capital Btoh - EXIRFT R ZAEBELE
commitments, which are not included in the above, is as EERG 7 EAFEIE - FHHT ¢
follows:
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Contracted, but not provided for: EEEORRER S
Buildings and structures B KRiEsY) 297,422 163,578
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@)

Notes to Financial Statements

ISR ML

31 December 2018
2018412 A 31 H

34. ABALES

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the Group had the following
material transactions with related parties during the year:

Notes
[z
Terminal service expenses: TSRS -
Nanjing Chemical Industry Park MREBEIXERR
Public Services Company Ltd. EXEREEAF (i
Rental and auxiliary expenses: HERMBRY :
NJCI TR (i)

Dragon Crown Investments
Limited (“DC Investments”)

Interest income:
WSDL

Notes:

EMCIERBER A
(TREMEIEERD) (i

MBHA -
WSDL (i)

B B 75 ¥R 2R B Atb 3 05 P w9

RN

AEERFAEGHERH

BEALETATEARS :

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT
5,342 6,419
12,444 12,317
1,680 1,680
10,971 9,004

MEE

(i)

(i)

(i)

v)

Terminal service expenses were charged in accordance
with the terms mutually agreed between the Group
and the related company which was a non-controlling
shareholder of NJDC.

Rental and auxiliary expenses were charged in
accordance with the terms mutually agreed between
the Group and a non-controlling shareholder of NJDC
for the use of pipe racks.

Rental expense was charged in accordance with the
terms mutually agreed between the Group and the
related company for the use of an office premise. DC
Investments is a company in which Mr. Ng Wai Man
and Mr. Chong Yat Chin, directors of the Company,
have 98% and 2% interests, respectively.

The shareholder loans of RMB93,000,000 (2017:
RMB103,000,000) and RMB25,060,000 (2017:
RMB60,000,000) to WSDL were interest-bearing at
6.0% (2017: 6.0%) and 6.4% (2017: 6.4%) per annum,
respectively, unsecured and repayable in five years.

(i)

)

(V)

BRI X DR IBE A E
S B HgE 72 W) AR B 15 5E B 1R 3K
SR NI L VNI TR
PR FEERACR -

HERMBRX IREARE
5] 2 g BE A Y FF R AR AR R
68 PR B ZRAR B 155 5E A0 16K
XA e

THE R IR B AN & B 22 5%
el NI R N E i
BRI - BEAlE
THERAARAESERER
FERERBTEENEST S
Bl 7 5 98% K 2% HE &5 2 1N
Al e

MWSDLIZ # M ik R &
193,000,000 A £ ¥ (2017
4 : 103,000,000 A R ¥ ) K
25,060,000 AR¥E (2017 £ :
60,000,000 A R#) Azt B E
o 2 pliR F6.0% (2017 :
6.0%) % 6.4% (2017 : 6.4%)
TR RERRERAER
o WERREERES -
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 34. FABMALESR(E)

) B R A T AE 2 &R

(b) Commitments with related parties (b)

The related party transactions in respect of items (i), (ii), ERES () ~ (i)~ (i) B2 (v) BB R
BB A 22 5 IR s R T AR Bl
or continuing connected transactions as defined in FIAE THEER 5 B
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. EBRZG o

(i) and (iv) above also constitute connected transactions

160

(c)

U)

(i)

A subsidiary of the Group, as the lessee, entered
into a three-year office lease agreement ending
on 31 December 2021 with DC Investments. As
at 31 December 2018, the total operating lease
commitment that falls due within one year was
HK$1,980,000 (2017: HK$1,680,000) and in the
second to fifth years was HK$3,960,000 (2017:
Nil).

A subsidiary of the Group entered into certain
agreements with NJCI for the use of pipe racks
and auxiliary services for periods up to and
ending on 31 December 2019, respectively.
As at 31 December 2018, the total operating
lease commitments in relation to pipe racks and
auxiliary services falling due within one year, in
the second to fifth years, and beyond the fifth
year were approximately HK$12,395,000 (2017:
HK$9,977,000), Nil (2017: HK$32,011,000) and
Nil (2017: Nil), respectively.

Details of the outstanding balances with related

parties are included in notes 22 and 24 to the financial

statements.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERER A A

(c)

(i)

ANEE 2 — BB A RE
AEAAEERNLIEH
B2 5T 37 A £ 2021 F 12 A
STHIEAB=ZFZRAE
MHE W= - 1201812 H
31H  —FRAH K
ST EHAHE 51,980,000/
7t (2017 4F : 1,680,00075
T ME—ERFRZ
¥ /5 3,960,00078 7T (2017
FiE)o

AEEZ —FEHE AR HE
TIEBER S FNEE
2019412 A 31 A IE HifH
ERAERERMERMERT
& T - R2018F12 4
31H BEEERKKE
BN —FAN - EFE
FRFERAFIA LR
4 T B A HE D B4
712,395,000 7T (2017
& :9,977,000/87L) * T
(2017 & : 32,011,000
) RE(2017F : E) ©

BB A LR RBELE K
ISEHA IS HRRMTE22 & 24 ©
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 34. BBALTRSR(E)
(d) Compensation of key management personnel of (d) ZAEENEZEEEASTHH
the Group
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FBT T
Short term employee benefits 52 E B 1R A 6,958 9,574
Post-employment benefits BB AR A 72 71
Total compensation paid BENEEER
to key management personnel ABREENAEEE 7,030 9,645
35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 35. RENESMEMTIR

The carrying amounts of each category of financial instruments
as at the end of the respective reporting periods are as follows:

Financial assets

Accounts and bills receivables
Financial assets included
in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables (note 22)
Cash and cash equivalents

As at 31 December 2017, other than balances mentioned
above, an available-for-sale investment with the carrying
amount of HK$41,200,000 was recognised in the financial

assets.

REREHR  SESRTANER

HERBENEBMEETER °

Annual Report 2018

BEEHIIT
SREE
Financial
asset at
amortised Loans and
cost under receivables
HKFRS 9 under
EBPERE HKAS 39
ZRAIFEIY BEZAER
BT REE  FI9RET
RAFIEREY BRI ER
SRMEE KIE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT T
FEUBR R R B 50,017 43,111
FTATENK - B R EAM
EWHIEN S/ EE
(FfzE22) 24,391 13,136
ReRREEEY 194,872 127,245
269,280 183,492
MR2017E12 8318 @ & L it & &

AN - BRIEIE /& 41,200,000 7% 7T 2 Al fi

FERE
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)

Financial liabilities

35. EENBSHEMRIR

(&)

TEAE

Financial Financial
liabilities liabilities
at amortised at amortised
cost under cost under
HKFRS 9 HKAS 39
BERMBRE BEREGET
A9  AEAIFE 395
15 T iR B T RE
A B BRHY PR F AR A
cRaE THRAE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET BT
Financial liabilities included in ST AE MR IR -
other payables, accruals EFrBERAREHEE
and contract liabilities MEREE 10,238 15,418
Interest-bearing bank loans STEIRITTER 175,500 228,583
185,738 244,001
36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 36. MBRBREEERRBE

POLICIES

FEENTESHMTIABRERSRER
SEEMARGTBRITER - %F2
BRTAFTZANSAEEZEESS
B AKEHAHMBEZHASREE
REfE PIMEBEERKEEELD
R LR - S R E MUK
TR DA Ko LA FE A 7008 e FEET B o

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and
cash equivalents and interest-bearing bank loans. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as accounts and bills receivables, deposits and
other receivables, and other payables and accruals, which
mainly arise directly from its operations.

AEEESRTAMSENEZRRS
MEER - EERRERSE SR
%o BEFEERNYHBEEELFRR
MIBGR » s SERAEELNT -

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board
of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.
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36.

Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s net debt obligations with
floating interest rates. The majority of the bank borrowings bear
interest at rates with reference to HIBOR. The Group mitigates
the risk by monitoring closely the movements in interest rates
and reviewing its banking facilities and borrowings regularly.
The Group has not used any interest rate swap to hedge its
exposure to interest rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in the HIBOR, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax
(through the impact on floating rate bank borrowings).

ISR ML

31 December 2018
2018412 A 31 H

36. MBEEREREARRBE(Z)

Tz

AEEHRHNTEMNEEBERER
EAREEDUE BN R EHFEHR
EAR - KD RITERMETIZR
FRRITEARFENERAE - XEE
BB ORI R BB A BT I E B E
RITREREREFRERR - AEE
I K Bh P A o] ) R b2 HY 3 O A R R

G o
N

TREFTEEMEXRTEBERT -
FERITAFXFKENEEEEBEHA
K EERR B ANG N GEBHF BIRTT
BT E) WGRVE -

Change in
Change in profit
basis points before tax
RR%i AT
HEE i A B
HK$’000
T#ET
31 December 2018 2018412 A31 H
HIBOR BBIRITRIZERFEFIX 50 1,070
31 December 2017 2017412 A31 H
HIBOR BBIRITRIZEREFIX 50 1,147
Credit risk =BG

The Group primarily provides services to recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that
advanced payments are generally required for new customers.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.
Since the Group primarily provides services to recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is normally no requirement for
collateral. As at 31 December 2018, there was a concentration
of credit risk as approximately 63.3% (2017: 57.2%) of the
Group’s accounts receivable were due from one debtor.

AEBEFZMERIREERTNE
=FHRHERE  c AEEBRAETE
F—RAZTEMK o ttoh - KGR
HEBHZIFERER - ASE/E
RRBRITEKXN - ARAEBEER
BERIREERTINE =FRER
B BALt—REBAREERRZ R
2018 12 A31 H * AR ALKEEI
BR X B £963.3% (2017 4F : 57.2%)
KE—EBA  BWEFEEEREER

B fEE o
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 36. MERBEBRHERBR(Z)
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued) 1EEEG (&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31 December R20184F 12 A 31 HR SR B R F 45
2018 FEER
The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum T & &% 12018 12 A 31 H & B&
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which AEBNEEHRRESNEEEER
is mainly based on past due information unless other information e ERR  HEEBERNEEER
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging (BRIEMGEEMEREBAT K ERK
classification as at 31 December 2018. The amounts presented R ) REKREERDE - FT275
are gross carrying amounts for financial assets. THRATHEEREAE -
12-month
ECL
+-@EpEH Lifetime ECL
FEFR 2HRNEERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
E-[E ETRE FZKR L9073
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TEL THL THL THT
Accounts and bills ERERTREE
receivables” = = = 50,017 50,017

Financial assets included in s AFBTFE «
prepayments, deposits &e RHEMERIE
and other receivables MEREE

- Normal —F® 24,391 - - - 24,391
Cash and cash equivalents B4 kB4 ZEY
—Not yet past due — AR 104,872 = = = 194,872
219,263 - - 50,017 269,280
* For accounts and bills receivables to which the Group * RASBEHABL A EZEEREN
applies the simplified approach for impairment, information BUERERERME @ ERREE
based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 21 to the 15 A E R R BTSRRI R 21 1%
financial statements. B
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36.

Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum expose as at 31 December 2017

The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets, which comprise
cash and cash equivalents, accounts and bills receivables and
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, arises from default of the counterparties, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from accounts receivables, and financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables are disclosed in notes 21 and 22, respectively.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds by
considering the maturity of both its financial liabilities and
financial assets (for example, accounts receivable) and
projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
internal funding and bank loans to meet its working capital
requirements.

ISR ML

31 December 2018
2018412 A 31 H

36. MBEERERERRBE(Z)

EEER ()
R2017F 12 A31 HZ REEE

rEENEREE(BERAS AR
FEY  BUERRERE - ARETA
AR REREMBEEKENS
BMEE)NEERRIRAL T ZOM
B ERERKEBESERZETANK
[EN=R

BRAAREEEWRERFR R ATRRK
Re REMEYGIEN S /EEEE
WEEREA#E—TEEES BIE
TRKIEE21 K22 °

REBET/ER

rEEEZECRAEREREE
(BIEn M AR TR ) PA e FREHR & 7530
ERENFHAREREES RN
R

AEENBERBEBERNTES M
RITEN EESFHEMERBEEEZ
MEREFE UWheHREEEST
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 36. M¥ERBEHEAERRKE (Z)
POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) B E D EE ()
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at AEERREBREN S LIARERIRT
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual LA ENEEBE R ¢

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

2018
On Less than 3to 1to5
demand 3 months 12 months years Total
3ERZE
RER HR3EAR 12184 1E55F met

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TERr TET TERr TERr TERr

Interest-bearing STRRITER
bank loans - 1,415 32,241 156,569 190,225
Other payables, accruals E{h JEFIE - fEsT
and contract liabilities  ERRAHNAE - 10,238 - - 10,238
- 11,653 32,241 156,569 200,463
2017
On Less than 3to 1t05
demand 3 months 12 months years Total
3EAZE
mER  AR3EA 1218R 1ZE5%F st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT THT FAT FHT FHAT
Interest-bearing STERITER
bank loans - 1,192 54,749 181,735 237,676
Other payables H e 5RIE K&
and accruals [T E R 1,201 14,217 - = 15,418

1,201 15,409 54,749 181,735 253,094
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36.

Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares.

The Group monitors the capital ratio on the basis of the gearing
ratio, which is calculated as the net debt divided by equity
attributable to owners of the Company. Net debt includes
interest-bearing bank loans, less cash and cash equivalents.
The gearing ratios as at the end of the respective reporting
periods were as follows:

ISR ML

31 December 2018
20184 12 A 31 H

36. MBEEREREARRBE(Z)

AEBEEAEENTRBARARER
SEBRNTELEES YRR
REVEARLE R M FEEBER
REARREMRITIREE -

AEEEREBEARB A RIBLEAN
SR B K AR B A A ) R B i R R D0
AR - REFRHEBREARARE - K
SE A AR REBRIRNOBE - [
RIREEARNNEITH -

AREZEERBRLRERELNL
o R RTIRE BEFERARRD
A ARGERFE - AEFHEE
BARIBRITEN  BRENMREEE
e REREHR - BERBLEM
™

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHBT FAT

Interest-bearing bank loans FTERITER 175,500 228,583

Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RERIREEEY (194,872) (127,245)

Net debt/(cash) BE/GRe) 358 (19,372) 101,338
Equity attributable to owners RAEHER AEG R

of the Company 1,053,694 1,087,806

Gearing ratio BEABHEER N/A T3 9.3%
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 37. FLTFIMBRAER
COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the ARARIRRERR 2T BEARRAKRZE
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BEHIT -
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B ARRKE 816,202 969,923
Available-for-sale investment AMHHERNEE - 41,200
Total non-current assets JEmENEELE 816,202 1,011,123
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Prepayments, deposits and BAR - Re Rk
other receivables H b fE U IR 568 272
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 121,092 46,550
Total current assets MENEEHEE 121,660 46,822
CURRENT LIABILITIES REIAE
Other payables and accruals HAb TR R EET &R 1,410 1,896
Interest-bearing bank loans FTEIRITER 27,000 50,500
Total current liabilities mBBERAE 28,410 52,396
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) #®B&EE (&E) & 93,250 (5,574)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS REERADEME
CURRENT LIABILITIES 909,452 1,005,549
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREBEE
Interest-bearing bank loans FTESRITER 148,500 178,083
Net assets BESE 760,952 827,466
EQUITY =
Share capital — note 27 A% AN —FfizE 27 122,063 122,063
Reserves (note) bt (5E) 638,889 705,403
Total equity B 760,952 827,466
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 37. FLFMBRAEK(E)
COMPANY (continued)
Note: BizE -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: NARIEBBENT :
Share Retained
premium profits Total
IR AR =B REBEF #et
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHAT FAT FAT
At 1 January 2017 R201741 A1 8 553,908 100,405 654,313
Total comprehensive income FRZEBABE
for the year - 97,473 97,473
Final 2016 dividend 2016 FREARR S = (28,074) (28,074)
Interim 2017 dividend 2017 FHERR S = (18,309) (18,309)
At 31 December 2017 and M2017412 A31H
1 January 2018 %2018 1A1H 553,908 151,495 705,403
Total comprehensive loss FRNEHEEBEEE
for the year - (23,792) (23,792)
Final 2017 dividend 2017 ERBIE - (18,309) (18,309)
Interim 2018 dividend 2018 FH HAfR 2 - (24,413) (24,413)
At 31 December 2018 M20184F 12 A31H 553,908 84,981 638,889
38. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 38. HHEMBHE
The financial statements were approved and authorised for EEZEN2019F3 A27 HBARE
issue by the board of directors on 27 March 2019. RETEE TSR -
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Five Year Financial Summary

EFEMBEHBRE
Year ended 31 December
HBZEZ12A31HLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
FHBT T FHET FA&TT T
REVENUE WA 262,491 241464 249,898 269,104 261,574
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B AR 112,397 87,106 98,637 111,105 114,120
Tax Fi1| (36,247) (29,299) (18,557) (23,010) (20,910)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR  fEREF| 76,150 57,807 80,080 88,095 93,210
Attributable to: AT ALFEMS -
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE YN 66,930 50,276 70,598 77,118 80,933
Non-controlling interests IR 9,220 7,531 9,482 10,977 12,277
76,150 57,807 80,080 88,095 93,210
At 31 December
MW12H831H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
FEx T T FA&TT T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IEmENEE 1,064,828 1,215,702 1,056,083 772,036 854,900
Current assets mENEE 276,620 190,343 249,220 267,825 361,465
Total assets BEMAE 1,341,448 1,406,045 1,305,303 1,039,861 1,216,365
LIABILITIES =0
Current liabilities mEAaE 52,519 84,522 19,030 58,398 163,753
Non-current liabilities IEREAE 185,021 182,099 232,090 19,035 47,583
Total liabilities BEER 237,540 266,621 251,120 77,433 211,336
Net assets BEFE 1,103,908 1,139,424 1,054,183 962,428 1,005,029
Total equity EmAAE 1,103,908 1,139,424 1,054,183 962,428 1,005,029

This summary does not form a part of the audited financial statements. I Z W DN R I mERA —&9 ©
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